BROMLEY CIVIC CENTRE, STOCKWELL CLOSE, BROMLEY BRI 3UH

To:

TELEPHONE:

020 8464 3333

DIRECT LINE:
FAX:

020 8313 4316
020 8290 0608

CONTACT: Stephen Wood
stephen.wood@bromley.gov.uk

DATE: 25 January 2022

Members of the
PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE NO. 1
Councillor Alexa Michael (Chairman)
Councillor Christine Harris (Vice-Chairman)
Councillors Kathy Bance MBE, Katy Boughey, Kira Gabbert, Samaris HuntingtonThresher, Charles Joel, Tony Owen and Suraj Sharma
A meeting of the Plans Sub-Committee No. 1 will be held at Bromley Civic Centre on
THURSDAY 3 FEBRUARY 2022 AT 7.00 PM
TASNIM SHAWKAT
Director of Corporate Services & Governance

Members of the public can speak at Plans Sub-Committee meetings on planning reports,
contravention reports or tree preservation orders. To do so, you must have
 already written to the Council expressing your view on the particular matter, and
 indicated your wish to speak by contacting the Democratic Services team by no later than
10.00am on the working day before the date of the meeting.
These public contributions will be at the discretion of the Chairman. They will normally be limited to
two speakers per proposal (one for and one against), each with three minutes to put their view
across.

To register to speak please telephone Democratic Services on 020 8313
4316
---------------------------------If you have further enquiries or need further information on the content
of any of the applications being considered at this meeting, please
contact our Planning Division on 020 8313 4956 or e-mail
planning@bromley.gov.uk
---------------------------------Information on the outline decisions taken will usually be available on
our website (see below) within a day of the meeting.
Copies of the documents referred to below can be obtained from
http://cds.bromley.gov.uk/

AGENDA
1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

2

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

3

CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON 25TH NOVEMBER 2021
(Pages 1 - 14)

4

PLANNING APPLICATIONS

4.1

Darwin

15 - 30

(19/03568/RECON) - Kinross, North End
Lane, Downe, Orpington, BR6 7HQ.

4.2

Chislehurst;

31 - 44

(21/02452/FULL1) - Babington House
School, Grange Drive, Chislehurst, Bromley,
BR7 5ES

4.3

Mottingham and Chislehurst
North;

45 - 64

(21/02616/FULL1) - Land Rear Of 165 And
167, White Horse Hill, Chislehurst

4.4

Copers Cope;

65 - 76

(21/03208/TPO) - 59 Downs Hill,
Beckenham, BR3 5ET

5

CONTRAVENTIONS AND OTHER ISSUES

NO REPORTS
Application No. and Address of Property
6
Report
No.

TREE PRESERVATION ORDERS

Ward

Page
No.

Application Number and Address

7

(21/05316/TPO) - OAKHILL HOUSE, 39 THE KNOLL, BECKENHAM, BR3 5JH
(Pages 77 - 84)

8

CONFIRMATION OF TPO 2727--LAND ADJACENT TO 27 HOLBROOK LANE,
CHISLEHURST (Pages 85 - 92)

9

CONFIRMATION OF TPO 2734--17 AVALON CLOSE ORPINGTON KENT BR6 9BS
(Pages 93 - 100)

10

CONFIRMATION OF TPO 2745-28 HOLBROOK LANE CHISLEHURST BR7 6PF
(Pages 101 - 106)

11

CONFIRMATION OF TREE PRESERVATION ORDER (TPO) 2758 - 19 & 30
BROADOAKS WAY, BROMLEY, BR2 0UA (Pages 107 - 114)

12

AUDIO RECORDING OF MEETING

Agenda Item 3
PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE NO. 1

Minutes of the meeting held at 7.00 pm on 25 November 2021
Present:
Councillor Alexa Michael (Chairman)
Councillor Christine Harris (Vice-Chairman)
Councillors Kathy Bance MBE, Katy Boughey, Simon Fawthrop,
Kira Gabbert, Charles Joel, Tony Owen and Gary Stevens
69

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE
MEMBERS

Apologies were received from Councillor Suraj Sharma and Councillor Gary Stevens
attended as substitute. Apologies were also received from Councillor Samaris Huntington
Thresher and Councillor Simon Fawthrop attended as substitute.
70

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.
71

CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON 30th September
2021

The minutes of the meeting held on 30 th September 2021 were agreed and signed as a
correct record.
72

PLANNING APPLICATIONS

72.1
PETTS WOOD AND KNOLL;
CONSERVATION AREASTATION SQUARE, PETTS
WOOD

(20/04001/FULL1) - 182 Petts Wood Road, Petts
Wood, Orpington, BR5 1LG.

Description of application: Retrospective application
for a single storey rear extension to restaurant.
This application sits in the Station Square Petts Wood
Conservation Area. The recommendation of the
planning report was for refusal.
Ward

Councillor

Tony

Owen

supported

1

Page 1

the

Plans Sub-Committee No. 1
25 November 2021
recommendation for refusal and stated that immediate
enforcement action should be initiated. This motion
was formerly seconded by Ward Councillor Simon
Fawthrop. A Member wondered if there was any
method by which a fine could be imposed if a tree had
been damaged.
The Tree Officer said that this matter had been on the
enforcement radar for some time and that harm had
been caused to the tree many years ago. A summary
offence had been committed but the 6 month period
that the Council had to take any action that could have
resulted in fines being levied had expired. The Tree
Team were working with the Enforcement Team to
encourage enforcement action to remove the structure
and it was hoped to get the hard landscaping to a
permeable surface as part of this action.
Recommendation was that the application be
refused and that immediate enforcement action be
undertaken and Environmental Health be
consulted.

72.2
PETTS WOOD AND KNOLL

(21/01272/FULL6) - 68 Broxbourne Road,
Orpington, BR6 0BA.
Description of application--Single storey side and rear
extension.
The officer recommendation was for permission.
Oral representations in objection to the application
were received at the meeting.
The Development Manager Area Team Leader stated
that additional comments and photographs received
had been disseminated to Members. He informed
Members that the application was located in the Knoll
Area of Special Residential Character. He said that it
was acknowledged that there was a land ownership
issue associated with the application, but clarified that
this was not within the remit of the Planning
Committee to deal with.
He reminded Members that at the end of the day this
application was just for a single storey side extension.
This extension was three meters wide and this was a
key issue that Members needed to consider.

2

Page 2

Plans Sub-Committee No. 1
25 November 2021
The Development Manager Area Team Leader
informed Members that if they were minded to
recommend the removal of the side windows, then
they would need to defer and seek permission from
the applicant. Retaining the windows with obscure
glazing could be dealt with on the night by adding
conditions to the recommendation for permission.
Members having considered the report, objections
and
recommendations,
RESOLVED
THAT
PERMISSION BE GRANTED as recommended,
subject to the conditions and informatives set out in
the report of the Assistant Director for Planning and
Building Control. The additional conditions were as
follows:
4) Before the development hereby permitted is
first occupied the two proposed High level
window(s) in the ground floor southern elevation
shall be obscure glazed to a minimum of
Pilkington privacy Level 4 and the window (s)
shall subsequently be permanently retained as
such.
Reason: In the interests of protecting residential
amenity in accordance with Policy 37 of the
Bromley Local Plan
5) Before the development hereby permitted is
first occupied the remaining window( s) in the
ground floor southern elevation shall be obscure
glazed to a minimum of Pilkington privacy Level
4 and shall be non-opening unless the parts of the
window which can be opened are more than 1.7
metres above the floor of the room in which the
window is installed and the window (s) shall
subsequently be permanently retained as such.
Reason: In the interests of protecting residential
amenity in accordance with Policy 37 of the
Bromley Local Plan
6. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and
Country
Planning
(General
Permitted
Development) Order 2015 (or any Order amending,
revoking and re-enacting this Order) no building,
structure, extension, enlargement or alteration
permitted by Class A, B, C, D or E of Part 1 of
Schedule 2 of the 2015 Order (as amended), shall
be erected or made within the curtilage(s) of the
3

Page 3

Plans Sub-Committee No. 1
25 November 2021
dwelling(s) hereby permitted without the prior
approval in writing of the Local Planning
Authority.
Reason: In the interests of protecting the
character of the area and residential amenity of
neighbouring properties in accordance with Policy
37 of the Bromley Local Plan.
7. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and
Country
Planning
(General
Permitted
Development) Order 2015 (or any Order amending,
revoking and re-enacting this Order) no change of
use of any kind permitted by Class L (Houses of
Multiple Occupation) of Part 3 of Schedule 2 of the
2015 Order (as amended), shall be undertaken
within the curtilage of the dwelling without the
prior approval in writing of the Local Planning
Authority.
Reason: To enable the Council to consider future
development at the site in the interest of local
amenity, in accordance with Policies 9 and 37 of
the Council’s Local Plan (2019).

72.3
PETTS WOOD AND KNOLL

(21/01363/FULL6) - 66 Great Thrift, Petts Wood,
Orpington BR5 1NG
Description of application: Single storey rear
extension and loft conversion with side and rear
rooflights and elevational alterations
Objections had been received.
This application sat in an Area of Special Residential
Character and the officer recommendation was that
the application be permitted.
The Principal Planning Officer informed Members that
revised plans had been received on 23 rd November
2021. These showed the existing solar panels and the
proposed elevation setting out which solar panels
would be retained. These plans were available on line
and had been circulated prior to the meeting. It was
clarified that the removal of the chimney did not
require planning permission. Members were also
asked to note that no corresponding chimney existed
on number 64. The central chimney that was shared
by both properties would be retained.

4

Page 4

Plans Sub-Committee No. 1
25 November 2021

Ward Councillor Tony Owen pointed out that this
application now stood in the Thrift Conservation Area
and so would need to be judged by different
standards. He also informed Members that the house
was put on the market the day before the planning
meeting. He motioned that the application be
deferred, one of the reasons being that he was
opposed to roof lights in a conservation area. A more
pressing reason for deferral was that there was no
indication on the plans concerning the location of the
side vent pipe.
Members having considered the report, objections
and
representations,
RESOLVED
that
the
application be DEFERRED without prejudice as
the site now fell within the newly adopted Thrift
Conservation Area and the report needed to be
updated to show this. It was also deferred as
clarification was required concerning the location
of the side vent pipe.
72.4
CHISLEHURSTCONSERVATION AREA
CHISLEHURST

(21/02788/TPO) - J Sainsbury’s, 73 High St,
Chislehurst, BR7 5AG
Description of application: Felling of 2 London Plan
trees at a wall backing on to 73 Empress Drive.
This application sat in the Chislehurst Conservation
Area and the officer recommendation was for refusal.
Members having considered the report, objections
and
representations,
RESOLVED
THAT
PERMISSION BE REFUSED for the reasons set out
in the report of the Assistant Director of Planning and
Building Control.

72.5
FARNBOROUGH AND
CROFTON;
CONSERVATION AREAFARNBOROUGH PARK

(21/03075/FULL1) - Pucks Cottage, Hazel Grove,
Orpington, BR6 8LU
Description of application: Demolition of existing
dwelling and erection of replacement 5 bedroom
detached dwelling with integral garage.
This application was part of the Farnborough Park
Conservation Area and the officer recommendation
was for the application to be refused .

5

Page 5

Plans Sub-Committee No. 1
25 November 2021
Oral representations in support of the application were
heard at the meeting.
The Development Manager Area Team Leader
reminded the Committee that this application had
come to the Committee previously and was deferred
while waiting for revised plans to be received. There
was an issue concerning the last cottage in the road
and whether or not that would be protected. Members
had asked to see a copy of the Inspector’s report
which had been provided as part of the meeting
papers. The Development Manager Area Team
Leader reminded Members that if they were minded to
grant
permission
against
the
officer’s
recommendation, then they would need to provide
clear reasons for doing so.
Ward Member Cllr Charles Joel referred Members to
the minute annex on page 9 of the agenda pack which
was the statement in support of the application that he
had submitted at the previous meeting of the Plans 1
Committee. With the Chairman’s permission, Cllr Joel
disseminated papers to the Committee which outlined
how the applicant (in his view) had amended the
design of the application as requested. He moved that
in view of these amendments, the application should
be permitted.
The Development Manager Area Team Leader
suggested to the Committee that they may need to
consider additional conditions if they were minded to
grant permission.
RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION

Members having considered the report, and
representations
received,
resolved
that
PERMISSION be GRANTED AGAINST OFFICERS’
RECOMMENDATION.
Accordingly, Members felt that the demolition and
replacement of the existing dwelling was acceptable,
having a neutral impact on the Conservation Area and
in the context of the nearby buildings in the
Conservation Area; also that the proposed five

6

Page 6

Plans Sub-Committee No. 1
25 November 2021
bedroom replacement was an acceptable design in
terms of its style and size and was not an
overdevelopment.
The following conditions were agreed:
1 The development to which this permission relates
must be begun not later than the expiration of 3 years,
beginning with the date of this decision notice.
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990
2 The development hereby permitted shall not be
carried out otherwise than in complete accordance
with the plans approved under this planning
permission unless previously agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In order to comply with Policy 37 of the
Bromley Local Plan and in the interests of visual and
residential amenity.
3 (a) Prior to commencement of the development
hereby approved (excluding any ground clearance or
demolition) a scheme for the provision of surface
water drainage shall be submitted and approved in
writing by the local planning authority.
(b) Before the details required to satisfy Part (a) are
submitted an assessment shall be carried out of the
potential for disposing of surface water by means of a
sustainable drainage system (SuDS) to ground,
watercourse or sewer in accordance with drainage
hierarchy contained within the London Plan Policy
5.13 and the advice contained within the National
SuDS Standards.
(c) Where a sustainable drainage scheme is to be
provided, the submitted details shall:
i. provide information about the design storm period
and intensity, the method employed to delay
(attenuate) and control the rate of surface water
discharged from the site as close to greenfield runoff
rates (8l/s/ha) as reasonably practicable and the
measures taken to prevent pollution of the receiving
groundwater and/or surface water
(d) The drainage scheme approved under Parts a, b
7

Page 7

Plans Sub-Committee No. 1
25 November 2021
and c shall be implemented in full prior to first
occupation of the development hereby approved
Reason: Details are required prior to the
commencement of any new operational development
in order to ensure that a satisfactory means of surface
water drainage, to reduce the risk of flooding can be
achieved before development intensifies on site and
to comply with the Policy 5.13 of the London Plan and
Policies 115, 116 and 117 of the Bromley Local Plan
4 No development shall commence on site (including
demolition) until such time as a Construction and
Environmental Management Plan has been submitted
to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. As a minimum the plan shall cover:
(a) Dust mitigation and management measures.
(b) The location and operation of plant and wheel
washing facilities
(c) Measure to reduce demolition and construction
noise
(d) Details of construction traffic movements including
cumulative impacts which shall demonstrate the
following:(i) Rationalised travel and traffic routes to and from
the site as well as within the site.
(ii) Provide full details of the number and time of
construction vehicle trips to the site with the intention
and aim of reducing the impact of construction related
activity.
(iii) Measures to deal with safe pedestrian movement.
(iv) Full contact details of the site and project manager
responsible for day-to-day management of the works
(v) Parking for operatives during construction period
(vi) A swept path drawings for any tight manoeuvres
on vehicle routes to and from the site including
proposed access and egress arrangements at the site
boundary.
(e) Hours of operation

8

Page 8

Plans Sub-Committee No. 1
25 November 2021

(f) Other site specific Highways and Environmental
Protection issues as requested on a case by case
basis
(g) The development shall be undertaken in full
accordance with the details approved under Parts a-f
Reason: Required prior to commencement of
development to ensure sufficient measures can be
secured throughout the whole build programme in the
interests of pedestrian and vehicular safety and the
amenities of the area. In order to comply with Policies
30, 31, 32 and 119 of the Bromley Local Plan of the
Unitary Development Plan and in the interest of the
amenities of the adjacent properties.
5 Prior to commencement of development (excluding
demolition) details of the proposed slab levels of the
building(s) and the existing site levels shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be
completed strictly in accordance with the approved
levels.
Reason: Required prior to commencement in order to
ensure that a satisfactory form of development can be
undertaken on the site in the interest of visual amenity
and to comply with Policy 37 of the Bromley Local
Plan.
6 (a) Prior to commencement of above ground works,
details (including samples) of the materials to be used
for the external surfaces of the building which shall
include roof cladding, wall facing materials and
cladding, window glass, door and window frames,
decorative features, rainwater goods and paving
where appropriate shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
(b) The development shall be carried
accordance with the approved details.

out

in

Reason: In order to comply with Policy 37 of the
Bromley Local Plan and in the interest of the
appearance of the building and the visual amenities of
the area
7 A replacement tree or trees of sizes and species to
be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority
9

Page 9

Plans Sub-Committee No. 1
25 November 2021
shall be planted in such positions as shall be agreed
by the Authority within 12 months of the removal of
the tree(s). Any replacement tree which dies, is
removed or becomes seriously damaged or diseased
within 5 years of the date of this consent shall be
replaced in the next planting season with another of
similar size and species to that originally planted.
Reason: In order to comply with Policies 37, 73 and
74 of the Bromley Local Plan and in the interest of the
visual amenities of the area.
8 Before the development hereby permitted is first
occupied the proposed windows/rooflights in the first
floor flank elevations shall be obscure glazed to a
minimum of Pilkington privacy Level 3 and shall be
non-opening unless the parts of the window/rooflight
which can be opened are more than 1.7 metres above
the floor of the room in which the window is installed
and the windows/rooflights shall subsequently be
permanently retained in accordance as such.
Reason: In the interests of the amenities of nearby
residential properties and to accord with Policies 6
and 37 of the Bromley Local Plan.
9 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and
Country Planning (General Permitted Development)
Order 2015 (or any Order amending, revoking and reenacting this Order) no building, structure, extension,
enlargement or alteration permitted by Class A of Part
1 of Schedule 2 of the 2015 Order (as amended),
shall be erected or made within the curtilage(s) of the
dwelling(s) hereby permitted without the prior approval
in writing of the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interests of protecting the character of
the area and residential amenity of neighbouring
properties in accordance with Policy 37 of the Bromley
Local Plan.
72.6
SHORTLANDS.
CONSERVATION AREABROADOAKS

(21/04240/TREE) - 19 Broadoaks Way, Bromley,
BR2 0UA

Description of application: T1 Bay Tree-Fell
The application sat in the Broadlands Way Estate
Conservation Area.

10

Page 10

Plans Sub-Committee No. 1
25 November 2021

This application sat in the Shortlands Ward and had
been called in by Ward Councillor Mary Cooke.
Written representations from Councillor Cooke in
favour of issuing TPOs to protect the trees were
received and read out at the meeting.
It had been mentioned that one of the options that
could be considered was a deferral while a light
assessment was undertaken. The Tree Officer pointed
out that a deferral would put the tree at risk of being
removed automatically. He recommended that a new
TPO be authorised immediately if the Committee
wanted to protect the tree.
Members having considered the report, objections
and recommendations RESOLVED THAT A NEW
TPO BE AUTHORISED.

72.7
SHORTLANDS.
CONSERVATION AREABROADOAKS

(21/04285/TREE) - 30 Broadoaks Way, Bromley,
BR2 0UB
The proposal was for the twisted willow tree in a rear
garden to be removed.
This tree was located in the Broadoaks Way Estate
Conservation Area.
Ward Councillor Mary Cooke had called in this
application and her written representations in support
of a TPO were read out at the meeting by the
Chairman.
In response to a question the Tree Officer said that it
was impossible to calculate how old the tree was
without obtaining a core increment sample. The Tree
Officer said that the tree was probably about 20 years
old and should therefore still have a useful life
expectancy.
Members, having considered the report, objections
and submissions RECOMMENDED that a NEW TPO
BE AUTHORISED.

11

Page 11

Plans Sub-Committee No. 1
25 November 2021
73

CONTRAVENTIONS AND OTHER ISSUES
No reports

74

TREE PRESERVATION ORDERS

74.1
FARNBOROUGH AND
CROFTON;

CONFIRMATION OF Tree Preservation Order 2742.
21 Dalton Close, Orpington
Description of application: Confirmation of Tree
Preservation Order 2742
Written objections had been received from an agent.
Ward Councillor Charles Joel spoke in favour of
confirming the TPO.
Members, having considered the report, objections
and representations, RECOMMENDED that the TPO
be CONFIRMED WITHOUT MODIFICATION.

74.2
COPERS COPE;

Confirmation of Tree Preservation Order (TPO)
2736 - Oakhill House, 39 The Knoll, Beckenham,
BR3 5JH
The officer proposal was that the TPO 2736 be
confirmed.
This application sat
Conservation Area

in

the

Chancery

Lane

Written representations in support and in objection to
the TPO had been received.
Oral representations in support and in objection to the
TPO were heard at the meeting.
Members,
having
considered
the
report,
objections and representations, RECOMMENDED
that the TPO be confirmed.

75

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS AMENDED
BY THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO
INFORMATION) (VARIATION) ORDER 2006 AND
THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 2000

12

Page 12

Plans Sub-Committee No. 1
25 November 2021
Exempt Minute of the meeting held on 25 November 2021.
76

Part 2 Minutes--30th September 2021
The Part 2 minutes of the meeting held on 30 th
September 2021 were agreed and signed as a correct
record.

13

Page 13

This page is left intentionally blank

Page 14

Agenda Item 4.1
Committee Date

Address

Application
Number
Ward
Proposal

Applicant

03/02/2022
Kinross
North End Lane
Downe
Orpington
BR6 7HQ
Officer - Jacqueline Downey

19/03568/RECON

Darwin
Minor material amendment comprising of variation of conditions 2
and 4 of planning Application Reference: DC/19/03568/FULL6 for
demolition of existing conservatory and erection of single storey
ground floor extension to the side, elevational alterations to provide
roof over extended bungalow with habitable accommodation in the
roof space and rooflights to sides/front - to allow for incorporating
sliding doors and juliet balconies and the use of new slate tiles
instead of retaining existing tiles.
Agent

Mr W Harris
Kinross
North End Lane
Downe
Orpington
BR6 7HQ

Mr Andy Barrett
4 Barnet Wood Road
Hayes
Bromley
BR2 8HJ

Reason for referral to
committee

Councillor call in
Call-In

RECOMMENDATION

Yes

Approved

KEY DESIGNATIONS

Biggin Hill Safeguarding Area
Green Belt
London City Airport Safeguarding

Page 15

Land use Details
Use Class or Use
description

Floor space (GIA SQM)

Existing

C3 Dwellinghouse

153.0

Proposed

C3 Dwellinghouse

173.7

Vehicle parking

Existing number
of spaces

Total proposed
including spaces
retained

Difference in spaces
(+ or -)

Standard car spaces

Approx. 4

Approx. 4

0

Disabled car spaces

0

Cycle

0

Electric car charging points

Representation
summary

Percentage or number out of total spaces 0

Letters to neighbours were sent out on the 26.05.2020.

Total number of responses
Number in support
Number of objections

2
0
2

1. SUMMARY OF KEY REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION




The development would not impact detrimentally on the openness and visual
amenities of the Green Belt over the extensions already permitted 19/03568/FULL6
The development would not impact detrimentally on the character of the area,
The development would not have a significantly harmful impact on the amenities of
neighbouring residents

2. LOCATION
2.1. The property is a detached chalet bungalow and is situated to the eastern side of
North End Land.

Page 16

2.2. The property is situated close to the south western side boundary and has a large
side garden to the northern side as well as a more modest rear garden.
2.3. The site is situated within designated Green Belt land.
2.4. Site location plan

3. PROPOSAL
3.1. The application seeks minor material amendments to planning permission under ref.
19/03568/FULL6 for a replacement part one/two storey side extension, and
enlargement of the roof to provide additional accommodation at first floor level
incorporating rear gable extensions and linking dormer and an increase in the
ridgeline. The application is retrospective and the development with the proposed
amendments have been carried out.
3.2. The proposed amendments involve the following:




Alterations to glazed doors and window to the first floor rear gable elevations and
dormer and provision of Juliet balconies to the glazed doors
New slate tiles to the roof instead of retaining existing tiles.
Alterations to the sizes and position of the proposed front and side rooflights, there
would be two to the front roofslope, one in the south side roofslope and three to
the north.

Page 17

3.3. Proposed amended rear and south side elevations (19/03568/RECON):

3.4. Proposed amended front and north side elevations (19/03568/RECON):

3.5. Previously approved rear and south side elevations (19/03568/FULL6):

3.6. Previously approved front and north side elevations (19/03568/FULL6):

Page 18

3.7. Proposed amended first floor and roof plans (19/03568/RECON):

3.8. Previously approved first floor and roof plans (19/03568/FULL6):

4. RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

4.1. 67/1041- Single storey extension to form lounge and new entrance hall- Permitted
4.2. 67/02232 - Single storey extension at rear (Revised Details) – Permitted
4.3. 73/3449- Single storey side and rear extension (new entrance hall, enlarged lounge
and new laundry room) – Permitted
4.4. 01/00182/FULL1 Single storey side extension for conservatory – Permitted

Page 19

4.5. 18/04846/PLUD proposed roof alterations – Permitted
4.6. 18/04809/HHPA - Single storey rear extension, extending beyond the rear wall of
the house as existing by 8m (beyond the original rear wall by 8m), for which the
maximum height would be 3.6m (maximum height of proposed and previous
extensions 3.6m), and for which the height of the eaves would be 3m (maximum
eaves height of proposed and previous extensions 3m) - (42 Day Notification for
Householder Permitted Development Prior Approval) - Prior Approval not required
4.7. 18/04848/PLUD - Proposed single storey side extension – Refused
4.8. 19/00619/FULL6 - Replacement of detached garage and summer house with garden
building (RETROSPECTIVE) – Refused
4.9. 19/00641/FULL6 - Demolition of existing conservatory and erection of single storey
ground floor extension to the side, elevational alterations to provide roof over
extended bungalow with habitable accommodation in the roof space. – Refused
4.10.

The refusal reasons were as follows:

4.11.
The proposal would constitute inappropriate development in the Green Belt
and would result in a detrimental impact on its openness and visual amenity with no
very special circumstances demonstrated to outweigh the harm caused, thereby the
proposal would be contrary to Paragraph 89 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Policy 51 of the Bromley Local Plan.
4.12.

The application was subsequently dismissed on appeal.

4.13.
19/03568/FULL6 - Demolition of existing conservatory and erection of single
storey ground floor extension to the side, elevational alterations to provide roof over
extended bungalow with habitable accommodation in the roof space and rooflights
to sides/front. – Permitted subject to a legal agreement

5. CONSULTATION SUMMARY
A) Statutory
None were received.
B) Local Groups
Downe Residents’ Association
Detrimental to visual and residential amenity (addressed in para 7.4)

Page 20




Condition 2 seeks to protect interest of visual and residential amenity
To allow amendment to plan for provision of doors and juliet balconies at first floor
would be significantly detrimental to both visual and residential amenity

Contrary to Green Belt Policy (addressed in para 7.2)





Doors with juliet balconies at the first floor would not be in keeping with the character
of the area and would be incompatible with surrounding developments
Style and design of juliet balconies are not in keeping with open and rural character
of the locality
Introduction of the doors and juliet balconies would result in a significant detrimental
change in the character of the original dwellinghouse and is therefore contrary to
Green Belt policy
no such very special circumstances and the alteration is contrary to policy.

Neighbouring amenity would be significantly harmed (addressed in para 7.4)
 Introduction of doors and juliet balconies at the first floor would have a significant and
harmful impact on the amenities of the neighbouring property, Little Orchard
 Would lead to wider visibility
 Overlooking over and above that which already exists of garden and into bedroom
and bathroom windows
 Unacceptable overbearing effect
Other variations from permitted plans (addressed in para 7.2 and 7.4)
 no amendment shown for the rooflights at the front or the side of the property
 window openings built are significantly larger and not in accordance with the
approved plans
 An additional window opening and a much enlarged window opening have been built
to the front which again is not in accordance with the plan.
 The plans showed the roof ridge height of the development to be the same as the
original dwelling. It was clear during construction that the new roof ridge height
appeared considerably higher than the approved plans.
 The proposal permitted was assessed to have largely the same bulk as the original
dwelling. Given that the height of the development now appears to exceed the original
dwelling the facts underlying this assessment are no longer correct and the
development could be considered in contravention of Green Belt policy.
C) Adjoining Occupiers

Overlooking from Juliet balconies and potential roof terrace (addressed in para 7.4)
 Drawing shows French doors to both 1st floor rooms not sliding doors as described
in the application title.
 either French doors or sliding doors the addition of Juliet balconies will give a wider
visibility and rear bedroom window, which is at the side, will be overlooked resulting
in an unacceptable loss of privacy
 addition of sliding doors or French doors on the 1st floor rooms will make it very
likely and easy for the owner to use the flat roof as a balcony or roof terrace.

Page 21





rear bedroom window could be looked down into from less than 2 metres away
will cause more loss of privacy and outlook from our garden.
drawing also shows enlarged 1st floor windows including the one on the southern
elevation which will overlook our middle bedroom window

6. POLICIES AND GUIDANCE
6.1. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) sets out
that in considering and determining applications for planning permission the local
planning authority must have regard to:
(a)
(b)
(c)

the provisions of the development plan, so far as material to the application,
any local finance considerations, so far as material to the application, and
any other material considerations.

6.2. Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004) makes it clear
that any determination under the planning acts must be made in accordance with
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
6.3. The National Planning Policy Framework was published on 24 July 2018 and
updated on 19 February 2019.
6.4. The development plan for Bromley comprises the Bromley Local Plan (Jan 2019)
and the London Plan (March 2021). The NPPF does not change the legal status of
the development plan.
6.5. The application falls to be determined in accordance with the following policies:
London Plan

D4 - Delivering good design
D1 - London’s form and characteristics
G2 - London’s Green Belt

Bromley Local Plan
6 Residential Extensions
37 General Design of Development
49 Green Belt

51 Dwellings in the Green Belt or MOL
Additional guidance
Supplementary Planning Guidance 1
Supplementary Planning Guidance 2
Bromley Supplementary Guidance

Page 22

7. ASSESSMENT

7.1. Amended scheme
7.1.1. The proposal is an amended scheme to the previously permitted application
under ref. 19/03568/FULL6 for the demolition of existing conservatory and
erection of single storey ground floor extension to the side, elevational
alterations to provide roof over extended bungalow with habitable
accommodation in the roof space and rooflights to sides/front.
7.1.2. In terms of its design, the proposal has been amended to incorporating
glazed doors and juliet balconies and the use of new slate tiles instead of
retaining existing tiles however the overall scale and design of the proposal
remains the same as the previous application.

7.2. Impact on Green Belt
7.2.1. Paragraphs 133 - 147 of the NPPF sets out the Government's intention for
Green Belt. The NPPF states that the fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is
to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open; the essential
characteristics of Green Belts are their openness and their permanence.
7.2.2. The Green Belt is intended to serve five purposes:
a) to check the unrestricted sprawl of large built-up areas;
b) to prevent neighbouring towns merging into one another;
c) to assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment;
d) to preserve the setting and special character of historic towns; and
e) to assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of derelict
and other urban land.
7.2.3. Paragraphs 143 - 147 deal specifically with development proposals in the
Green Belt. Inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the Green
Belt and should not be approved except in very special circumstances. When
considering any planning application, local planning authorities should ensure
that substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green Belt. 'Very special
circumstances' will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by
reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the proposal,
is clearly outweighed by other considerations.
7.2.4. Paragraphs 145 states A local planning authority should regard the
construction of new buildings as inappropriate in the Green Belt. Exceptions
are stated, the most relevant of which to this application is
c) the extension or alteration of a building provided that it does not result in
disproportionate additions over and above the size of the original building;
d) the replacement of a building, provided the new building is in the same use
and not materially larger than the one it replaces;

Page 23

7.2.5. Bromley Development Plan Policies provide the same level of protection to
Green Belt as the NPPF.
7.2.6. Policy 51 deals specifically with extensions or alterations to dwellings in the
Green Belt. The policy states that proposals will only be permitted if:
(i) the net increase in the floor area over that of the original dwelling house is
no more than 10%, as ascertained by external measurement; and
(ii) their size, siting, materials and design do not harm visual amenities or the
open or rural character of the locality; and
(iii) the development does not result in a significant detrimental change in the
overall form, bulk or character of the original dwellinghouse.
7.2.7. Proposals to extend converted or replacement dwellings will not normally be
permitted. This policy relates to proposals for extensions, alterations or
outbuildings, which are to be sited within 5m of the existing dwelling house.
Other development within the curtilage is inappropriate by definition and would
only be permitted where very special circumstances have been demonstrated
7.2.8. The original permission ref. 19/03568/FULL6 was supported by an offer for a
Unilateral Undertaking which would remove PD rights for larger householder
extensions and an agreement to revoke the approval of the prior approval
application for the 8m single storey rear extension under ref. 18/04809/HHPA.
Having regard to the Inspector comments for the previously dismissed appeal
ref. 19/00641/FULL6, along with a planning condition removing permitted
development rights, it was considered that the fall-back position, consolidation
of the roof profile and offer of removal of PD rights would be sufficient to
materially outweigh the harm identified to the Green Belt and these would
amount to very special circumstances that would justify departing from the
normal policy provisions of the green belt.
7.2.9. The amended scheme would not increase the bulk or footprint from the
previously approved extensions ref. 19/03568/FULL6 as it involves changes to
the fenestration and changes to the roof tile materials. It is not therefore
considered that the proposal would have a harmful impact on the openness or
visual amenities of the Green Belt over the extensions originally permitted
under ref. 19/03568/FULL6.
7.2.10. This amended scheme is part retrospective and the development has
therefore been implemented, as such the conditions removing all PD has come
into effect and the same condition could be imposed on this amended scheme
should permission be recommended. Therefore, a larger householder
extension under a prior approval such as the granted prior approval under ref.
18/04809/HHPA could not now be carried out as PD rights have now been
revoked. Therefore, it is not considered that an update to the Unilateral
Undertaking is now required as its main purpose was to prevent the

Page 24

construction of the prior approval scheme before the full planning permission
scheme was implemented 19/03568/FULL6.
7.2.11. Comments have been received by a Local Group which raised concern that
the ridge height as constructed has been increased from the original ridge
height. The Planning Investigations team have measured the ridge height as
constructed and found that the ridge height does not exceed the ridge height
shown on the original planning application ref. 19/03568/FULL6 which is 6.3m.
The ridge height on this amended scheme drawings ref. 19/03568/RECON
also measures 6.3m.
7.2.12. Taken together, it is considered that these various factors combine to
outweigh the harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and they
would provide the very special circumstances necessary to justify the
development.
7.3. Design
7.3.1. The bulk and scale of the extensions and alterations remain the same as
originally permitted under ref. 19/03568/FULL6 and were found to have an
acceptable impact on the character of the area or the appearance of the host
dwelling. The main considerations in terms of design are whether the proposed
alterations to the fenestration and rooflights and change to slate roof tiles
would impact detrimentally on local character and the appearance of the host
dwelling.
7.3.2. The proposed replacement of the existing brown/red roof tiles with slate tiles
is not considered to appear harmfully out of character with the road. There is a
mixture of property types, architectural styles and materials in the facades and
roof including pantile and plain rooftiles with an example of slate roof tiles
further along North End Lane to the north west at ‘Stoneycroft’. Additionally,
the is limited visibility of the property from the main road given the significant
height of the boundary vegetation. Therefore, it is considered that the
proposed slate rooftiles would not appear harmfully out of character with the
road or have a significantly harmful impact on the appearance of the host
dwelling.
7.3.3. The proposed changes to the fenestration are not considered to significantly
impact on the appearance of the host dwelling. The changes which would be
most visible from the road would be the front and side rooflights. The rooflight
to the south side would be increased in height but reduced in width (from 1.1m
wide to 0.74m wide) therefore it would have a similar overall size to the
previously permitted rooflight and would have a more standard rooflight
appearance. The change from a smaller double front rooflight to two separate
slightly larger rooflights (from 0.57m wide to 0.74m wide) and from a large
rooflight with four panes to three separate rooflights on the north flank
roofslope are considered to be moderate alterations to the dwelling which

Page 25

would not have a significant impact on the character of the host property or
local area over the rooflights already permitted under ref. 19/03568/FULL6.
7.3.4. The rear first floor windows were already of a significant size, in particular
the windows to the northern side of the rear elevation. The proposed amended
first floor rear fenestration would incorporate two glazed doors with Juliet
balconies of the same size. The south sized window would be increased in
width from 2m to 2.3m and the north side window would be reduced from 3.9m
to 2.3m. Overall the amount of glazing to the first floor rear glazed doors would
be reduced and as the proposed rear doors would have a more symmetrical
appearance, it is considered that the proposed first floor fenestration would be
an improvement of the original submission (ref. 19/03568/FULL6) and would
not impact detrimentally on the character of the area.

7.3.5.Having regard to the form, scale, siting and proposed materials it is
considered that the proposed amended scheme would complement the host
property and would not appear out of character with surrounding development
or the area generally.
7.4. Neighbouring Amenity
7.4.1. Policy 37 of the BLP seeks to protect existing residential occupiers from
inappropriate development. Issues to consider are the impact of a
development proposal upon neighbouring properties by way of overshadowing,
loss of light, overbearing impact, overlooking, loss of privacy and general noise
and disturbance.
7.4.2. The proposal remains similar in scale, bulk and siting to the originally
permitted application (19/03568/FULL6) and no significant concerns were
raised in terms of neighbouring amenity in the scheme. The main consideration
in terms of neighbouring amenity is the proposed alterations to the fenestration
and the impact these may have on the privacy of the neighbouring properties.
7.4.3. The front rooflight would not overlook any neighbouring private amenity
areas or properties. The south side rooflight adjacent to Little Orchard. A
condition was previously imposed on the original application imposed to restrict
the window to have obscure glazing and non-opening below 1.7m from the
floor level to prevent a harmful loss of privacy to the neighbouring property as
the rooflight would serve an ensuite and therefore a similar condition could be
imposed if the window is not already obscured glazed, that obscure glazing
should be installed with three months of the decision notice.
7.4.4. The proposed first floor windows to the south side which are closer to ‘Little
Orchard’ would be increased in width by 0.3m however they would continue to
have a similar separation from the shared boundary with this neighbouring
property from 4.79m to 4.70 therefore the outlook and level of overlooking

Page 26

would not be significantly different to that already permitted. The provision of
opening doors would also not have a significant impact on overlooking as the
Juliet balconies would not allow for a significantly greater outlook than fixed
windows.
7.4.5. Concerns have been raised over the glazed doors providing access to the
flat roof to be used as a terrace. A condition could be imposed to prevent
access to the roof in order to prevent a terrace which would have a harmful
impact on the privacy of the neighbouring property and its rear amenity space.
8. CONCLUSION
8.1. Having had regard to the above it is considered that the development in the manner
proposed is acceptable in that very special circumstances have been put forward
which are considered to outweigh the harm identified to the green belt and the
proposal would not result in a significant loss of amenity to local residents nor impact
detrimentally on the character of the area.
8.2. Background papers referred to during production of this report comprise all
correspondence on the files set out in the Planning History section above, excluding
exempt information.
RECOMMENDATION: Permission

Subject to the following conditions:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Standard compliance with plans
Materials in accordance with application documents/drawings
Removal of all PD rights
Obscure glazing to south flank rooflight
No access to flat roof

Any other planning condition(s) considered necessary by the Assistant Director of
Planning

Page 27

This page is left intentionally blank

19/03568 - Kinross, North End Lane
© Crown copyright and database rights 2021.
Ordnance Survey 100017661.
25 January 2022

1:1250

Page 29

This page is left intentionally blank

Agenda Item 4.2
Committee Date

Address

Application
Number
Ward
Proposal
Applicant

03.02.2022
Babington House School
Grange Drive
Chislehurst
Bromley
BR7 5ES
21/02452/FULL1

Officer - Robin Evans

Chislehurst
Erection of single storey extension to south east elevation to provide
permanent classroom.
Agent

Sharon Best
Babington House School
Grange Drive
Chislehurst
BR7 5ES

Nathan Anthony
St Johns Lane
Canterbury
CT1 2QQ

Reason for referral to
committee

Councillor call in
Call-In

RECOMMENDATION

Yes

Application Approved

KEY DESIGNATIONS

Biggin Hill Safeguarding Area
London City Airport Safeguarding
Smoke Control SCA 10

Representation
summary

Neighbour letters sent 29.6.21
Site notice displayed 30.6.21
Newspaper advert published 7.7.21
Total number of responses
8
Number in support
0
Number of objections
8
1. SUMMARY OF KEY REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

The development would not impact detrimentally on the character of the area,

The development would not impact detrimentally on the heritage assets,

Page 31




The development would not have a significantly harmful impact on the amenities of
neighbouring residents
The development would not have harmful highway impacts.

2. LOCATION
2.1

The application site is Babington House School, located on the Grange Drive at the
junction with Clifford Avenue. The main original building appears to be a former
manor house 2-3 storeys in height, subsequently extended and converted into a
school. The site is relatively compact and the open grounds to the east and south
east comprise grassed areas (with some trees) and two MUGA pitches in the south
east corner and north east corner of the site. There is a three storey flat roofed
“tower” type extension to the eastern elevation of the main building which appears
to be positioned between the two MUGAs with a small hard surfaced area in front.
The perimeter/boundary is marked by trees and a chain-link/weldmesh fence. The
site is not located in a Conservation Area or an Area of Special Residential
Character, and the building is not statutorily listed although it is locally listed.

2.2

The development site comprises the ground floor section of the three storey “tower”
extension and the hard surfaced area where a single storey extension has been
constructed.

Fig 1 Site location plan.

Page 32

3. PROPOSAL
3.1

Planning permission is sought for erection of single storey extension to south east
elevation to provide permanent classroom. It is understood that although the
development had not begun at the time the planning application was made some
construction works have since begun on site (although they are carried out at the
Applicant’s risk and potentially liable to Planning Enforcement Action).

3.2

The






3.3

In response to comments received the Applicant offers the following comments:

Due to the level changes between the existing building and proposed building,
internal corridors would be difficult, without enlarging the proposed building
larger, and the School is content with the external access only,

The proposed addition can be constructed without impacting upon the existing
building “tower” foundations,

The proposed building is intended as a classroom

application is supported by the following documents:
Application form,
Application drawings,
Design and Access Statement,
Drainage Statement and FRA,
Construction phasing/details,

Page 33

Fig 2 Proposed ground floor plan.

Fig 3 Proposed SE (front) elevation.

Fig 4 Proposed SW (side) elevation.
4. RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
4.1

There have been various planning applications to the school including a number of
temporary buildings for classrooms etc. dating from the 1980s onwards as well as
some tree works including:

4.2

00/01949/FULL1 – Detached temporary building for 2 classrooms was granted on
19 July 2000 and it position and retention for a further period was granted under
subsequent applications.

4.3

19/01698/FULL1 – Construction of MUGA pitch on existing grassed area
(retrospective) was approved on 16 February 2021.

4.4

20/03272/FULL1 – Retention of temporary modular building for educational use for
a period of 18 months together with associated works was approved on 1 June
2021.

5. CONSULTATION SUMMARY
A) Statutory
5.1

Highways: The application site lies in an area with a low PTAL 2 rating indicating
the application site and proposed development would be more reliant upon private
transport, such as the car, than on public transport services. This is a sensitive site

Page 34

in terms of on-street parking by staff and dropping off and picking up of pupils, with
known traffic and parking congestion issues. The School is understood to have a
Travel Plan although it does not appear to have been updated recently. It is
understood that some staff may/may have previously parked at the Chislehurst
Sports and Country Club car park on Elmstead Lane although it is not known if this
still occurs, whether the recent location of a nursery school at the Sports Club may
have affected this staff parking arrangement, and this should be confirmed. The
proposed extension is to replace the existing temporary classroom
(20/03272/FULL1) and the increase in pupil numbers has already taken effect and
this proposal in itself would not increase staff or pupil numbers. The school mentions
further expansions when a more detailed look at the traffic situation will be
undertaken. However, in the meantime, given that this proposal would formalise the
temporary classroom permission and as the Travel Plan as not been updated for
some time, the School should provide an up-to-date Travel Plan including the
normal mode of travel by all staff and pupils and proposed initiatives to reduce car
travel.
B) Local Groups
5.2

The Chislehurst Society

Access to the proposed extension appears to be external and not integrated
into the school’s internal layout/access,

Foundations may impact upon the adjacent tower structure,

Intended purpose may change over time and may become a changing room
for the adjacent sports pitches,

C) Adjoining Occupiers
5.3

Objections

5.3.1

General

There is no clear overall plan for the school expansion which appears to be
poorly planned and piecemeal,

The school continues to expand in pupil numbers up to 621 and building size,
overdeveloping the site, and should be curtailed,

Proposed single storey extension may be extended upwards over time,

Works have started on site, the School assumes planning permission will be
granted conflicting with the proper planning application process,

Neighbours have not been informed of the development/application,

The school is a business and its building works are for profit,

Poor integration of proposed extension with main school and siting next to
MUGA may lend itself to being a pitch-side changing room,

Other works are taking place to the Early Years accommodation and outside
areas compromising the design and physical access arrangements
(wheelchair ramps),

5.3.2

Standard of accommodation

Proposed extension would block windows in existing rooms creating a poor
quality environment within that room,

Page 35




Proposed extension is not well integrated into the existing building, with
external access only,
Differing ground levels may not meet necessary accessibility standards,

5.3.3

Design

Proposed extension is a poorly designed piecemeal addition conflicting with
and detracting from the existing building, blocking its existing architectural
design and features,

5.3.4

Neighbouring amenity

Existing and additional traffic congestion would harm air quality,

Building works cause noise and disturbance to residents particularly during
weekends and summer holiday,

5.3.5

Highways and parking

Previous expansion in 2015 with 60 increased pupils causes traffic and parking
congestion,

Private Schools have a wider catchment area increases private car use rather
than public transport, cycling or walking from within the local area,

Lacks a Travel Plan to manage expansion in pupil numbers, promote
sustainable travel and manage transport/parking,

Traffic and parking congestion reducing visibility, harms highway safety;
causing accidents, and obstructs residents’ properties,

The School should manage traffic and parking through parking restrictions,
staggered arrival/drop off times and use of the Elmstead Lane playing field,

6. POLICIES AND GUIDANCE
6.1

National Policy Framework 2019

6.2

NPPG

6.3

The London Plan 2021
D4 Delivering Good Design
S3 Education and childcare facilities
HC1 Heritage conservation and growth
G7 Trees and woodlands
T4 Assessing and mitigating transport impacts
T6 Car parking

6.4

Bromley Local Plan 2019
30 Parking
37 General Design of Development
39 Locally Listed Buildings
57 Outdoor Recreation and Leisure
58 Outdoor Sport, Recreation and Play
72 Protected Species
73 Development and Trees
74 Conservation and Management of Trees and Woodlands

Page 36

115 Reducing Flood Risk
119 Noise Pollution
122 Light Pollution
6.5

Supplementary Planning Guidance
Supplementary Planning Guidance 1: General Design Principles

7. ASSESSMENT
7.1

Procedural Matters

7.1.1

Notwithstanding representations received, the planning system allows for planning
permission to be sought and granted retrospectively, and although this is not is not
necessarily encouraged the proposal shall be assessed on its planning merits only
and its retrospective nature shall not be prejudice the application either way.
Furthermore, works carried out (that require planning permission) without the
necessary consent are in breach of planning control, unauthorised, they are carried
out at the Applicant/Developer’s own risk, and are potentially liable to Planning
Enforcement action.

7.1.2

Notwithstanding third party representations the planning application has been
published/notified in accordance with the planning regulations and the Council's
adopted statement of community involvement including writing directly to properties
that are identified as physically adjoining the application site (and those located
opposite), by placing an advert in the local newspaper and by placing
adverts/notices on or close to the application site. Although the Applicant is not
obliged to engage with the community this would not be discouraged.

7.1.3

In the event that planning permission is granted it may be subject to any appropriate
conditions to manage the way in which the development/activity takes place, and
this is a standard practice on all planning permissions. The reason for a
development is not a material planning consideration; except for instance in Green
Belt cases where Very Special Circumstances may be required.

7.2

Principle and location of development – acceptable

7.2.1

The land in the location of the extension was formerly a hard surfaced area adjoining
the existing “tower” element of the building and at the edge of the MUGA playing
pitches. The land falls within/comprises part of the wider educational use of the site
and would not conflict with the established use.

7.3

Design and landscaping – acceptable

7.3.1

Design is a key consideration in the planning process. Good design is an important
aspect of sustainable development, is indivisible from good planning, and should
contribute positively to making places better for people.

7.3.2

Paragraph 124 of the NPPF states that the creation of high quality buildings and
places is fundamental to what the planning and development process should
achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, creates better

Page 37

places in which to live and work and helps make development acceptable to
communities.
7.3.3

Paragraph 127 of the NPPF requires Local Planning Authorities to ensure that
developments will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for
the short term but over the lifetime of the development; are visually attractive as a
result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and effective landscaping and
are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging
appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities). New development
shall also establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of
streets, spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and
distinctive places to live, work and visit; optimise the potential of the site to
accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount and mix of development
(including green and other public space) and support local facilities and transport
networks; and create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which
promote health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and
future users and where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine
the quality of life or community cohesion and resilience.

7.3.4

Policy 73 of the Bromley Local Plan states that proposals for new development will
be required to take particular account of existing trees on the site and on adjoining
land, which in the interests of visual amenity and/or wildlife habitat, are considered
desirable to be retained.

7.3.5

Policy 77 of the Bromley Local Plan states that development proposals will seek to
safeguard the quality and character of the local landscape and seek the appropriate
restoration and enhancement of the local landscape through the use of planning
obligations and conditions.

7.3.6

London Plan and Bromley Local Plan policies further reinforce the principles of the
NPPF setting out a clear rationale for high quality design.

7.3.7

The extension would be single storey in height, relatively modest in size and scale
and would be viewed form most viewpoints with the larger form and mass of the
“tower” extension and the main building behind it and as such it would not appear
to overdevelop the site or appear unduly prominent in the wider area and it would
be well separated from the site boundaries and would not appear cramped in
relation to the boundaries or other surrounding development. The overall design
and materials would complement those in the existing building, particularly the
“tower” extension, and this could be managed by planning condition.

7.3.8

The application details indicate that the proposed permanent extension would
replace some of the piecemeal temporary accommodation portable classrooms
around the site (such as 20/03272/FULL1) and as such it would assist in providing
more integrated accommodation removing some of the cluttered portable
structures. It refers to a wider master plan and intension to expand the school, with
this proposal providing an initial part of that plan with the potential to access its roof
area in the future. However, at this point, the currently proposed classroom

Page 38

extension is assessed on its own merits and any future proposals in the mentioned
master plan would be assessed at that time.
7.3.9

The extension would be positioned on existing hard surfacing and would not have
a directly harmful impact on trees or vegetation important within the site or street
scene.

7.3.10 Although the proposal is not for major development and is not obliged to achieve
Secure by Design, it could nonetheless provide Secure by Design
measures/mitigation and the Applicant could be encouraged to do so by planning
informative.
7.4

Heritage Assets – acceptable

7.4.1

The NPPF Section 16 sets out the tests for considering the impact of a development
proposal upon designated and non-designated heritage assets. The test is whether
the proposed development will lead to substantial harm to or total loss of
significance of a designated heritage asset and whether it can be demonstrated that
the substantial harm or loss is necessary to achieve substantial public benefits. A
range of criteria apply.

7.4.2

NPPF paragraphs 202-203 state where a development proposal will lead to less
than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm
should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including, where
appropriate, securing its optimum viable use. The effect of an application on the
significance of a non-designated heritage asset should be taken into account in
determining the application. In weighing applications that directly or indirectly affect
non-designated heritage assets, a balanced judgement will be required having
regard to the scale of any harm or loss and the significance of the heritage asset.

7.4.3

As mentioned, the proposed addition would be relatively modest in size and scale,
it would not be unduly prominent in the site or in the wider area. there are many
other extensions to the building of varying eras, designs and appearance this
proposed addition would not detract from the character, appearance or historic
setting of the existing locally listed building and there is no objection from the
Council’s Conservation Officer.

7.5

Neighbouring amenity – acceptable

7.5.1

Policy 37 of the Bromley Local Plan seeks to respect the amenity of occupiers of
neighbouring buildings and those of future occupants, providing healthy
environments and ensuring they are not harmed by noise and disturbance,
inadequate daylight, sunlight, privacy or by overshadowing.

7.5.2

Policy 4 of the Bromley Local Plan also seeks to protect existing residential
occupiers from inappropriate development. Issues to consider are the impact of a
development proposal upon neighbouring properties by way of overshadowing, loss
of light, overbearing impact, overlooking, loss of privacy and general noise and
disturbance.

Page 39

7.5.3

As mentioned, the land/site is already in educational use. Although the classroom
may be visible from some of the nearby neighbouring properties it would not be
excessive in size and it would be well separated from the boundaries and nearest
property neighbouring residential properties and this proximity together with its size
and scale would not have a significantly harmful impact on the residential amenities
by reason of over overbearing effect or overshadowing. Although existing
trees/vegetation should not be relied upon to screen new development, existing
trees within the site and boundary screening may assist in this to some degree. The
siting of the proposed classroom and its use would not have a significantly more
harmful impact in terms of general activity/disturbance or noise than the former use
of the land as part of the playing area and indeed it may even partially screen some
noise from those properties. furthermore, as indicated in the application details the
proposed permanent addition would assist in the removal of temporary classrooms
around the site which are positioned closer to neighbouring properties.

7.6

Highways and parking – acceptable

7.6.1

The NPPF recognises that transport policies have an important role to play in
facilitating sustainable development but also in contributing to wider sustainability
and health objectives. The NPPF clearly states that transport issues should be
considered from the earliest stage of both plan making and when formulating
development proposals and development should only be prevented or refused on
transport grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of development are
severe.

7.6.2

The NPPF states that all developments that will generate significant amounts of
movement should be required to provide a travel plan, and the application should
be supported by a transport statement or transport assessment so that the likely
impacts of the proposal can be assessed.

7.6.3

London Plan and Bromley Local Plan Policies encourage sustainable transport
modes whilst recognising the need for appropriate parking provision. Car parking
standards within the London Plan and Bromley Local Plan should be used as a
basis for assessment.

7.6.4

As mentioned in the previous application for the retention of the temporary
classroom 20/03272/FULL1 there were 401 pupils in September 2019 rising to 417
pupils in September 2020 and a forecast of 420 pupils to the end of the School year
in September 2021. The currently proposed extension would form a permanent
replacement classroom for the existing temporary classroom i.e., it would
accommodate those pupils currently housed in the temporary classroom which shall
be removed in due course and the permanent extension in itself would not increase
pupil or staff numbers any further. However, given that this permission would
formalise the previous permission for the temporary classroom in a permanent
fashion and would set a new position in the school accommodation it would be
prudent and reasonable for the school to update its Travel Plan at this point, and
this could be managed by planning condition. Any future proposals in the mentioned
Master Plan would be assessed on their merits at that time.

7.7

Other matters

Page 40

7.7.1

Drainage – acceptable

7.7.1.1 There is no objection from the Council’s Drainage Engineer.
8. CIL
8.1

The Mayor of London's CIL is a material consideration. CIL is not payable on this
application and the applicant has completed the relevant form.

9 Conclusion
9.1

Having had regard to the above it is considered that the development in the manner
proposed is acceptable in that it would not detract from the character and
appearance of the site and its setting; including the locally listed building, it would
not result in a significant loss of amenity to local residents, have significantly harmful
highway impacts or other effects such as drainage.

9.2

Background papers referred to during production of this report comprise all
correspondence on the files set out in the Planning History section above, excluding
exempt information.

RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION BE GRANTED
Subject to the recommended conditions:
Standard
Standard Time Limit
Standard compliance/retention in accordance with the submitted plans (part retrospective)
Details to be submitted
Travel Plan (part retrospective)
Compliance
External materials as set out in the application details
Constructed in accordance with the Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy
Informatives
Secure by Design
Any other planning condition(s) considered necessary by the Assistant Director of
Planning.

Page 41

This page is left intentionally blank

21/02452 - Babington House School
© Crown copyright and database rights 2021.
Ordnance Survey 100017661.
25 January 2022

1:1250

Page 43

This page is left intentionally blank

Agenda Item 4.3
Committee Date

03/02/2022

Address

Land rear of 165 and 167
White Horse Hill
Chislehurst

Application
Number
Ward
Proposal
Applicant

Officer - Robin Evans

21/02616/FULL1

Mottingham And Chislehurst North
Erection of two storey, three bedroom, detached dwellinghouse with
associated access, parking and amenity space.
Agent

Guy Osborne

James Sharp

Deal House
3 Willow Grove
Chislehurst
BR7 5AF

2 Pickering Lane
Orpington
BR5 1FA

Reason for referral to
committee

Councillor call in
Call-In

RECOMMENDATION

Yes

Application Permitted

KEY DESIGNATIONS
Biggin Hill Safeguarding Area
London City Airport Safeguarding
Open Space Deficiency
Smoke Control SCA 51

Land use Details
Use Class or Use
description

Floor space (GIA SQM)

Existing

n/a

n/a

Proposed

C3 dwellinghouse

138sqm

Page 45

Residential Use – See Affordable housing section for full breakdown including
habitable rooms
Number of bedrooms per unit
1

2

Market

3

4 Plus

Total/Payment in lieu

1

n/a

1

n/a

Affordable (shared
ownership)

Affordable (social
rent)
Total

Vehicle parking

Existing number
of spaces

Total proposed
including spaces
retained

Difference in spaces
(+ or -)

Standard car spaces
Disabled car spaces
Cycle

n/a
n/a
n/a

1
0
2

+1
0
+2

Electric car charging points

Representation
summary

Percentage or number out of total spaces
100%

Neighbour letters sent 30.6.21
Newspaper advert published 14.7.21
Site notice displayed 2.9.21

Total number of responses
Number in support
Number of objections

15
3
12

UPDATE
This application was originally heard at the meeting of the Plans Sub Committee No. 3 on
6th January 2022. Having considered the report Members resolved to grant planning
permission subject to the recommended conditions.
Following the meeting (and prior to any formal decision being issued) it was brought to the
Council’s attention that there was an error in the original report, namely that the figures
provided for the number of support and objection comments in the representations summary
had been transposed. The original report has been updated and the correct figures are

Page 46

provided in the summary table above. In addition, the original report incorrectly referred to
the Petts Wood ASRC in the conclusion (paragraph 9.1) and this has also been corrected.
The application is therefore reported back to members for consideration in light of the
updated report.
1. SUMMARY OF KEY REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION




The development would not impact detrimentally on the character of the area,
The development would not have a significantly harmful impact on the amenities
of neighbouring residents
The development would not have harmful highway impacts.

2. LOCATION
2.1

The application site is a parcel of land located on the southern side of Cranmore
Road measuring approximately 0.033ha, formerly the rear gardens of Nos. 165 and
167 White Horse Hill, Chislehurst. The land slopes downwards to the north and west
with the contour of the hillside. The land is in an unkempt condition. The area is
residential in nature characterised mostly by semidetached and terraced two storey
post-war dwellings set in consistently sized and shaped plots, albeit relatively
compact in size and with numerical densities ranging from approximately 20-26u/ha
in the immediate vicinity of the application site. the application site is not listed and
does not lie within a Conservation Area or an Area of Special Residential Character.

Fig 1. Site location plan.
3. PROPOSAL
3.1

Planning permission is sought for erection of two storey, three bedroom, detached
dwellinghouse with associated access, parking and amenity space.

Page 47

3.2

The





application is supported by the following documents:
Application form,
Application drawings,
Design and Access Statement,
Planning Statement,

Fig 2 Proposed block plan.

Page 48

Fig 3 Proposed site layout and ground floor plan.

Fig 4 Proposed First floor plan.

Fig 5 Proposed front elevation and street scene.

Photograph 1 application site from Cranmore Road.

Page 49

Aerial photograph 1
4. RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
4.1

The relevant planning history relating to the application site is summarised as
follows:

4.1.1

98/01864/FUL – Two storey four bedroom detached house with integral garage was
refused on 19.08.1998 for the following reason:
1.
The proposed severance of an area of existing rear gardens to form a new
building plot would be contrary to Policies H.2 and E.1 of the Unitary
Development Plan and would result in a cramped overdevelopment of the site,
out of character in the locality.

4.1.2

12/00090/FULL1 – Erection of two storey detached 3 bedroom dwelling was refused
on 02.03.2012 for the following reason:
1.
The proposed severance of existing rear gardens to form a new building plot
would result in a cramped overdevelopment of the site, out of character in the
locality, and contrary to Policies BE1 and H7 of the Unitary Development Plan
and Planning Policy Statement 3 – “Housing”.

5. CONSULTATION SUMMARY
A) Statutory
5.1

Highway Department: The application site has a low PTAL 2 rating (on a scale
where 0 has the least and 6b has the best access to public transport services)
indicating that the site and the proposed development would more reliant upon
private transport such as the car and bicycle than on public transport. The
proposed dwelling would use an existing vehicle access onto the Cranmore Road
and would be provided with 1 parking spaces in accordance with the London Plan.
Nos. 165 and 167 White Horse Hill both have parking spaces on their frontages
and as such the proposed dwelling would not deprive them of existing parking
spaces on Cranmore Road. No objection subject to recommended conditions.

Page 50

B) Local Groups
n/a
C) Adjoining Occupiers
5.2

Objection

5.2.1

General
 similar/previous planning applications have been refused, indicating the
development is unacceptable,
 development would set a precedent,
 plot was the garden of No. 167 White Horse Hill and was intended for a granny
annexe,
 other permissions/granny annexes in the area increases number of residents in
the area,
 only for profit with no benefit to the local area,

5.2.2

Housing matters

plot too small and lack of amenity space for future occupants,

no significant benefit to the housing supply,

5.2.3

Design and landscaping

overdevelopment of plot,

cramped appearance out of keeping with generally spacious area,

inappropriate backland/garden land development,

new design out of keeping with traditional character of its surroundings,

proposal would remove existing trees,

5.2.4

Neighbouring amenities

overbearing to neighbouring outlook and views,

overlooking to neighbouring privacy,

building and landscaping overshadowing neighbouring properties and
gardens,

would prevent access to side of No. 1 Cranmore Road for future extensions or
maintenance,

larger houses and gardens should be encouraged due to need for amenity and
working from home space in the pandemic,

noise and disturbance to neighbours,

additional vehicles and air pollution to neighbours,

5.2.5

Highways and parking

busy road used as a shortcut with speeding vehicles and highway accidents,

insufficient on-site parking/garage space and visitor parking would increase
on-street parking,

development would exacerbate traffic and parking congestion, impede
emergency vehicle access, and harm highway safety,

construction process would cause traffic congestion,

parking restriction signage is unclear causing parking fines,

Page 51

5.2.6

5.3

Other

further impact on Thames Water services and pipe leaks,

would exacerbate existing impact on ground conditions/stability of
neighbouring properties and affect their property values,

increased surface water run-off affecting the water table and flooding,

impact/strain on resources,

area is subject to fly-tipping and site has been left to decay in order to improve
chances of planning permission.
Support

5.3.1

General

General support for the proposal,

would utilise a disused/derelict under used site,

the proposal would comprise sustainable development,

an appeal could not be defended,

5.3.2

Housing matters

small windfall sites increase housing supply and contribute towards alleviating
housing demand,

5.3.3

Design and landscaping

the site is not “backland”

there would be adequate separation,

design would be in keeping with the street scene,

6. POLICIES AND GUIDANCE
6.1

National Policy Framework 2019

6.2

NPPG

6.3

The London Plan 2021
GG2 Making the best use of land
D3 Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
D4 Delivering good design
D5 Inclusive design
D7 Accessible housing
D11 Safety, security and resilience to emergency,
H1 Increasing housing supply
H2 Small sites,
G5 Urban Greening
G6 Biodiversity and access to nature
G7 Trees and woodlands
SI1 Improving air quality
SI12 Flood risk management
SI13 Sustainable drainage
T1 Strategic approach to transport

Page 52

T5 Cycling
T6 Car parking
T6.1 Residential parking
6.4

Bromley Local Plan 2019
1 Housing Supply
4 Housing Design
8 Side Space
30 Parking
32 Road Safety
37 General Design of Development
113 Waste Management in New Development
116 Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems
120 Air Quality
123 Sustainable Design and Construction
124 Carbon reduction, decentralised energy networks and renewable energy
125 Delivery and Implementation of the Local Plan

6.5

Supplementary Planning Guidance
Providing for Children and Young People's Play and Informal Recreation (2012)
Accessible London: Achieving an Inclusive Environment (2014)
Sustainable Design and Construction (2014)
Shaping Neighbourhoods: Character and Context (2014)
Housing (March 2016)
Control of Dust and Emissions During Construction and Demolition (2014)
Housing (2016)
Homes for Londoners – Affordable Housing and Viability (2017)
Planning Obligations (2010) and subsequent addendums
SPG1 General Design Principles
SPG 2 Residential Design Guidance

7. ASSESSMENT
7.1

Resubmission

7.1.1

As mentioned, the current scheme follows on from the previous application and
12/00090/FULL1 and compares/differs in the following ways:

Dwelling positioning/layout and design would be handed and positioned closer
to the southern side flank boundary with No. 1 Cranmore Road,

7.1.2

The current proposal is therefore materially different from the previously proposed
scheme and it will be assessed on its own merits. The current proposal is also
assessed in relation to the current Development Plan including a new London Plan
2021 and Bromley Local Plan 2019, and a new NPPF 2021, compared with the
previous scheme(s).

7.2

Principle and location of development – acceptable

Page 53

7.2.1

Housing is a priority use for all London Boroughs. London Plan Policies H1, H2,
H10, D3, D4 and D7 generally encourage the provision of redevelopment in
previously developed residential areas provided that it is designed to complement
the character of surrounding developments, the design and layout make suitable
residential accommodation, and it provides for garden and amenity space.

7.2.2

NPPF paragraph 53 also encourages the effective use of land by reusing land that
has been previously developed (brownfield land) and excludes gardens from the
definition of previously developed land.

7.2.3

Policy 4 of the Local Plan advises that new housing developments will be expected
to meet all of the following criteria in respect of; density; a mix of housing types and
sizes, or provides house types to address a local shortage; the site layout, buildings
and space about buildings are designed to a high quality and recognise as well as
complement the qualities of the surrounding areas; off street parking is provided;
the layout is designed to give priority to pedestrians and cyclists over the movement
and parking of vehicles; and security and crime prevention measures are included
in the design and layout of buildings and public areas.

7.2.4

The current position in respect of Bromley’s Five Year Housing Land Supply
(FYHLS) was agreed at Development Control Committee on 2 November 2021. The
current position is that the FYHLS (covering the period 2021/22 to 2025/26) is 3,245
units, or 3.99 years supply. This is acknowledged as a significant undersupply and
for the purposes of assessing relevant planning applications means that the
presumption in favour of sustainable development will apply.

7.2.5

London Plan Policy H1 sets Bromley's housing target at 774 homes per annum. In
order to deliver this target, boroughs are encouraged to optimise the potential for
housing delivery on all suitable and available brownfield sites. This approach is
consistent with Policy 1 of the Bromley Local Plan, particularly with regard to the
types of locations where new housing delivery should be focused.

7.2.6

Policy H2 requires Boroughs to pro-actively support well-designed new homes on
small sites (below 0.25 hectares in size). Policy D3 requires all development to
make the best use of land by following a design led approach.

7.2.7

NPPF paragraph 11 sets out the presumption in favour of sustainable development.
In terms of decision-making, the document states that where a development
accords with an up to date local plan, applications should be approved without
delay. Where a plan is out of date, permission should be granted unless the
application of policies in the Framework that protect areas or assets of particular
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or any
adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework taken as a whole.

7.2.8

According to paragraph 11(d) of the NPPF in the absence of a 5 year Housing Land
Supply the Council should regard the Development Plan Policies for the supply of
housing including Policy 1 Housing Supply of the Bromley Local Plan as being 'out
of date'. In accordance with paragraph 11(d), for decision taking this means where
there are no relevant development plan policies or the policies which are most

Page 54

important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission
unless:
i)
the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development
proposed; or
ii)
any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework
taken as a whole.
7.2.9

The application site lies within a residential urban/suburban area where new
development including housing is encouraged to be located, although it is not
necessarily an allocated or identified site and therefore comprises a windfall or site
not necessarily expected to become available for development. This proposal would
provide 1 new dwelling, which would represent a minor contribution to the supply of
housing within the Borough. This aspect of the proposal will be considered in the
overall planning balance set out in the conclusion of the report having regard to the
presumption in favour of sustainable development.

7.3

Housing matters - acceptable

7.3.1

Optimising site Capacity through design (density)

7.3.1.1 Before the subdivision of Nos. 165-167 White Horse Hill and the formation of the
application site Nos. 165-167 White Horse Hill measured approximately 0.099ha,
resulting in an estimated 20 u/ha and a plot size, shape and general form of
development consistent with the established pattern of built form and urban grain in
this location. As mentioned, the application site measures approximately 0.033ha,
within a PTAL 2 rated area, and the subdivided plot providing one dwellinghouse
would lead to an estimated 30u/ha density and this would not differ significantly from
the prevailing numerical density. Although the proposal would reduce the size of the
former plots and the proposed plot in particular would have a narrower plot depth
this alteration in plot size/shape would not be highly visible, prominent or noticeable
from outside the site and within the street scene. The resulting plots at Nos. 165167 White Horse Hill would be somewhat smaller leading to an estimated greater
dwelling density of approximately 23u/ha and also smaller sizes/shallower plot
shapes compared with the prevailing plots in White Horse Hill however again this
would not be overly visible or obvious within the street White Horse Hill or Cranmore
Road scene. Furthermore, the "design led approach" is less focussed on numerical
density and more on physical design based character. In this case the statistical
analysis and the visual design of the size and scale of the building would not have
a significantly greater numerical density or a significantly different effect on
character and appearance of the site within the local area.
7.3.2

Standard of residential accommodation

7.3.2.1 In March 2015 the Government published The National Technical Housing
Standards. This document prescribes internal space within new dwellings and is
suitable for application across all tenures. It sets out requirements for the Gross
Internal (floor) Area of new dwellings at a defined level of occupancy as well as floor
areas and dimensions for key parts of the home, notably bedrooms, storage and

Page 55

floor to ceiling height. The Gross Internal Areas in this standard will not be adequate
for wheelchair housing (Category 3 homes in Part M of the Building Regulations)
where additional internal area is required to accommodate increased circulation and
functionality to meet the needs of wheelchair households.
7.3.2.2 Policy 4 of the Bromley Local Plan sets out the requirements for new residential
development to ensure a good standard of amenity. The Mayor’s Housing SPG sets
out guidance in respect of the standard required for all new residential
accommodation to supplement London Plan policies. The standards apply to new
build, conversion and change of use proposals. Part 2 of the Housing SPG deals
with the quality of residential accommodation setting out standards for dwelling size,
room layouts and circulation space, storage facilities, floor to ceiling heights,
outlook, daylight and sunlight, external amenity space (including refuse and cycle
storage facilities) as well as core and access arrangements to reflect the
Governments National Technical Housing Standards.
7.3.2.3 The London Plan makes clear that ninety percent of new housing should meet
Building Regulation requirement M4 (2) ‘accessible and adaptable dwellings’ and
ten per cent of new housing should meet Building Regulation requirement M4 (3)
‘wheelchair user dwellings’, i.e. is designed to be wheelchair accessible, or easily
adaptable for residents who are wheelchair users. The relevant category of Building
Control Compliance should be secured by planning conditions.
7.3.2.4 The proposal would provide a two storey 3-bedroom 5-person (3b5p) dwelling with
a relatively spacious layout, rooms sizes, and appropriately sized laid out private
amenity space, and the submitted details respond to accessible/adaptable homes
requirements.
7.4

Design and landscaping – acceptable

7.4.1

Design is a key consideration in the planning process. Good design is an important
aspect of sustainable development, is indivisible from good planning, and should
contribute positively to making places better for people.

7.4.2

Paragraph 124 of the NPPF states that the creation of high quality buildings and
places is fundamental to what the planning and development process should
achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, creates better
places in which to live and work and helps make development acceptable to
communities.

7.4.3

Paragraph 127 of the NPPF requires Local Planning Authorities to ensure that
developments will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for
the short term but over the lifetime of the development; are visually attractive as a
result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and effective landscaping and
are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging
appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities). New development
shall also establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of
streets, spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and
distinctive places to live, work and visit; optimise the potential of the site to

Page 56

accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount and mix of development
(including green and other public space) and support local facilities and transport
networks; and create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which
promote health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and
future users and where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine
the quality of life or community cohesion and resilience.
7.4.4

Policy 73 of the Bromley Local Plan states that proposals for new development will
be required to take particular account of existing trees on the site and on adjoining
land, which in the interests of visual amenity and/or wildlife habitat, are considered
desirable to be retained.

7.4.5

Policy 77 of the Bromley Local Plan states that development proposals will seek to
safeguard the quality and character of the local landscape and seek the appropriate
restoration and enhancement of the local landscape through the use of planning
obligations and conditions.

7.4.6

London Plan and Bromley Local Plan policies further reinforce the principles of the
NPPF setting out a clear rationale for high quality design.

7.4.7

Although the application site formerly related to Nos. 165-167 White Horse Hill, the
site and the proposed design would front on to and therefore also relate to Cranmore
Road.

7.4.8

As mentioned, the currently proposed dwelling would be handed and its mass and
architectural features would be repositioned towards the south western boundary
with No. 1 Cranmore Road and away from 165-167 White Horse Hill where it would
provide some additional spacing from White Horse Hill and it would provide
sufficient spacing from No. 1 Cranmore Road, in keeping with the existing spatial
standards in this part of the highway and local area. As mentioned above,
notwithstanding the reduction in the size of the application site plot and Nos. 165167 White Horse Hill, the effect would not be unduly prominent within either street
scene and would not have a significantly more harmful impact on the wider
character and appearance of the area.

7.4.9

The design of the dwelling itself and external materials would not appear to conflict
with those in the local area, and this could be managed by planning condition in the
event that planning permission is granted. The proposal would not directly impact
trees or vegetation significantly important to the character of the area and would
offer the opportunity for additional planting.

7.5

Neighbouring amenity – acceptable

7.5.1

Policies 6 and 37 of the Bromley Local Plan seek to protect existing residential
occupiers from inappropriate development. Issues to consider are the impact of a
development proposal upon neighbouring properties by way of overshadowing, loss
of light, overbearing impact, overlooking, loss of privacy and general noise and
disturbance.

Page 57

7.5.2

Policy 4 of the Bromley Local Plan also seeks to protect existing residential
occupiers from inappropriate development. Issues to consider are the impact of a
development proposal upon neighbouring properties by way of overshadowing, loss
of light, overbearing impact, overlooking, loss of privacy and general noise and
disturbance.

7.5.3

Although the proposed dwelling would be visible from some of the nearest
neighbouring properties, including No. 6 Cranmore Road and Nos. 165 and 167
White Horse Hill, it would be sufficiently well separated that it would not have a
significantly more harmful impact on outlook or direct sun or daylight, than the
existing situation. The main outlook would be to the front and rear (north east and
south west respectively) i.e. in the same direction as existing dwellings in Cranmore
Road where any additional overlooking would not appear to be significantly more
harmful, although the design of any upper floor side flank windows should be
avoided or carefully managed in order to avoid harmful sideward overlooking.
Furthermore, there was no objection in this regard in the previous planning
decisions and the current proposal does not significantly alter this position.

7.6.

Highways and parking – acceptable

7.6.1

The NPPF recognises that transport policies have an important role to play in
facilitating sustainable development but also in contributing to wider sustainability
and health objectives. The NPPF clearly states that transport issues should be
considered from the earliest stage of both plan making and when formulating
development proposals and development should only be prevented or refused on
transport grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of development are
severe.

7.6.2

The NPPF states that all developments that will generate significant amounts of
movement should be required to provide a travel plan, and the application should
be supported by a transport statement or transport assessment so that the likely
impacts of the proposal can be assessed.

7.6.3

London Plan and Bromley Local Plan Policies encourage sustainable transport
modes whilst recognising the need for appropriate parking provision. Car parking
standards within the London Plan and Bromley Local Plan should be used as a
basis for assessment.

7.6.4

The application site lies in an area with a low PTAL 2 rating (on a scale where 0 has
the least and 6b has the best access to public transport services) indicating that the
site and the proposed development would be more reliant upon private transport
such as the car and bicycle than on public transport. The proposed dwelling would
use an existing vehicle access onto the Cranmore Road and would be provided with
1 parking space in accordance with the London Plan. Nos. 165 and 167 White Horse
Hill both have parking spaces on their frontages and as such the proposed dwelling
would not deprive them of any existing parking spaces on Cranmore Road. there is
no objection from the Council’s Highway Department on highway grounds, subject
to recommended conditions in the event that planning permission is granted.
Furthermore, there was no objection in this regard in the previous planning
decisions and the current proposal does not significantly alter this position. Cycle

Page 58

parking details could be managed by planning condition in the event that planning
permission is granted. Refuse storage details could be managed by planning
condition in the event that planning permission is granted.
7.7

Sustainability – acceptable

7.7.1

The NPPF requires Local Planning Authorities to adopt proactive strategies to
mitigate and adapt to climate change. London Plan and Draft Local Plan Policies
advocate the need for sustainable development. All new development should
address climate change and reduce carbon emissions.

7.7.2

The London Plan encourages the highest standards of sustainable design and
construction should be achieved in London to improve the environmental
performance of new developments and to adapt to the effects of climate change
over their lifetime. Policy SI 2 Minimising greenhouse gas emissions of the London
Plan states that development should make the fullest contribution to minimising
carbon dioxide emissions in accordance with the hierarchy; Be Lean: use less
energy; Be Clean: supply energy efficiently, Be Green: use renewable energy and
Be Seen: monitor those renewable energy measures.

7.7.3

Local Plan Policy 123 states that all applications for development should
demonstrate how the principles of sustainable design and construction have been
taken into account.

7.7.4

As the proposal is for a new dwelling it would offer the opportunity to include energy
efficient and sustainable construction methods improving its environmental
performance. Furthermore, as the proposal would comprehensively redevelop the
site it would also offer the opportunity to incorporate renewable energy generating
technology such as ground source or air source heat pumps and/or solar panels
thereby also contributing towards carbon dioxide emissions savings and this would
be encouraged.

7.8

Other matters

7.8.1

There is no objection from the Council’s Drainage Engineer subject to a suitable
drainage system being provided and this could be managed by planning condition.

7.8.2

Given the currently open and vacant use of the site and its potential to contain
contaminants the Council’s Environmental Health Department recommends the
submission of a contaminated land assessment and this could be managed by
planning condition along with a Construction Environmental Management Plan and
measures for installing suitable gas boilers within an Air Quality Management Area.

8. CIL
8.1

The Mayor of London's CIL is a material consideration. CIL is payable on this
application and the applicant has completed the relevant form.

9. CONCLUSION

Page 59

9.1

Having had regard to the above it is considered that the development in the manner
proposed would not impact detrimentally on the character of the area, it would not
have a significantly harmful impact on the amenities of neighbouring residents and
would not have harmful highway impacts. For these reasons and subject to
recommended conditions it is recommended that planning permission is granted.

9.2

Background papers referred to during production of this report comprise all
correspondence on the files set out in the Planning History section above, excluding
exempt information.

RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION BE GRANTED
Subject to the recommended conditions:
Standard
Standard Time Limit
Standard Compliance with Plans
Pre-commencement
Contaminated Land Assessment
Slab levels to be submitted
Scheme for surface water drainage
Construction Environmental Management Plan
Above Ground
Highway surface water drainage
Cycle parking details
Refuse/recycling storage details
Landscaping
Pre-occupation
Parking in accordance with plans
Compliance
External materials
Side Space
No new windows (apart from those approved)
Obscure glazed/restricted opening windows
Permitted Development rights removed A, B, C, D, E
Accessible and adaptable dwellings
Construction vehicle wash-down
Gas Boilers (Air Quality Management)
Informatives
Party Wall Act
Side Space
New vehicular accesses
Street furniture
New driveway materials
Control of Pollution/Construction sites

Page 60

Thames Water infrastructure
Any other planning condition(s) considered necessary by the Assistant Director of
Planning.

Page 61

This page is left intentionally blank

21/02616 - Land R/O 165 and 167
White Horse Hill
© Crown copyright and database rights 2021.
Ordnance Survey 100017661.
25 January 2022

1:1250

Page 63

This page is left intentionally blank

Agenda Item 4.4
Committee
Date

3rd February 2022

Address

59 Downs Hill
Beckenham
BR3 5ET

Application
Number
Ward
Proposal

21/03208/TPO

Officer Chris Ryder

Copers Cope
T2 Ash - Remove.
T3 Norway Maple - Remove.
T4 Oak - Remove.
SUBJECT TO TPO 1387 (2.7.1997)

Applicant
Agent
Mrs Kim Fisher
Innovation Group Environmental
Services
Unit 4
Linnet Court
Cawledge Business park
Alnwick
NE66 2GD
Reason for referral to
Subsidence related financial
committee
risk

RECOMMENDATION

Councillor call in

Consent in part for:
T2 Ash - Remove.

KEY DESIGNATIONS
Tree Preservation Order (TPO) 1387
Downs Hill Conservation Area

Page 65

Representation
summary

Total number of responses
Number in support
Number of objections

0
0
0

SUMMARY OF KEY REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION


Members must decide whether to consent or refuse the proposed tree removal,
based on the evidence submitted and the officer’s assessment.

PROPOSAL
1. This application has been made in respect of an oak tree (T4), an ash tree (T2)
and a maple tree (T3) in connection with a subsidence investigation at 59 Downs
Hill. The trees are positioned in the front garden. The works are proposed to
achieve building stabilisation in accordance with the professional
recommendations.

Figure 1 - Oak (T4)

Page 66

LOCATION
2. The application site is comprised of a detached dwelling constructed circa 1945,
located on the west side of the road, adjacent to the junction with The Avenue .
Mature trees have been made the subject of the above listed Tree Preservation
Order (TPO). The trees contribute to the local street scene. The conservation area
status applies broad tree protection to trees in this area of Ravensbourne Valley.
3

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
 REMOVE 1 SYCAMORE 1 OAK AND 2 ASH TREES TREES IN CONSERVATION AREA - DOWNS
HILL CONSERVATION AREA

Ref. No: 97/01331/TFL | Status: Application Permitted
 REMOVAL OF ONE ASH T3 SUBJECT TO TPO 1387

Ref. No: 98/01678/TFL | Status: Application Permitted
 Single storey side extension

Ref. No: 04/01285/FULL6 | Status: Application Permitted
 Single storey side and rear extension

Ref. No: 04/02651/FULL6 | Status: Application Permitted
 Intention to crown reduce by 20% and crown lift to give a clearance from the ground of 6
metres 2 Ash, 1 Sycamore and 1 Maple and reduce height by 30% 1 Leylandii in front garden
and crown thin and crown reduce by 20% 1 Oak and cut overhanging branches back to the
boundary line (in neighbours garden) 1 Ash in back garden. TREES IN CONSERVATION AREAS

Ref. No: 05/02494/TREE | Status: Decision No objection
 Intention to fell 1 Lawson cypress adjacent to the property. TREES IN CONSERVATION AREAS

Ref. No: 10/01748/TREE | Status: Decision No objection
 Fell one tree in grounds of 1-12 West Oak (to rear of 59 Downs Hill) SUBJECT TO TPO 1(Be
1961)

Ref. No: 11/01127/TPO | Status: Consent (e.g.tree works, haz subs)
 fell 1 Lawson Cypress on the left hand side of the rear garden, closest to the property

Ref. No: 12/02851/TREE | Status: Decision No objection
 T2 Ash - Remove. T3 Norway Maple - Remove. T4 Oak - Remove. SUBJECT TO TPO 1387
(2.7.1997)

Ref. No: 21/03208/TPO | Status: Pending Consideration
 T2 Ash - Remove. T3 Maple (Norway) - Remove. SUBJECT TO TPO 1387 (2.7.1997)

Ref. No: 21/04238/TPO | Status: Application Withdrawn
 Partial underpinning

Ref. No: 99/00121/OTHBN6 | Status: Building Work Complete
 Single storey rear extension

Ref. No: 04/04890/DEXFP2 | Status: Building Work Complete

3.1

Underpinning of the property has taken place circa 1999 to the original footprint
of the dwelling. This has not extended to the garage and conservatory.

Page 67

Figure 2 - 1999 Partial Underpinning

4
4.1

5
5.1

CONSULTATION SUMMARY
A site notice was sent to the applicant to be displayed in the public domain and no
representations were received.
POLICIES AND GUIDANCE
National Policy Framework 2019
15. Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

5.2

The London Plan
7.21 Trees and Woodlands

5.3

Draft London Plan
G1 Green Infrastructure and Natural Environment
G7 Trees and Woodlands

5.4

Bromley Local Plan 2019
42 Conservation Areas
73 Development and Trees
74 Conservation and Management of Trees and Woodlands

5.5

The London Borough of Bromley Tree Management Strategy 2016-2020
Section 18

Page 68

5.6

National Planning Guidance - Tree Preservation Orders and trees in
conservation areas (Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government)
Paragraph 020 – 057

6

CONSIDERATIONS

6.1

This application has been made by an agent of the insurance company, acting on
behalf of the claimant and property owner. The proposed works have been
recommended by the agent to enable the local soil conditions to rehydrate, by
ensuring mature vegetation is eliminated as a subsidence causal factor.

6.2

The damage observed is occurring in the converted garage, which has been
converted into a habitable bedroom within the last 20 years. The garage conversion
is not listed within the planning history and is therefore deemed to be permitted
development. The floor of the room is not level and minor cracking has formed
around the wall edges. Cracking and significant distortions have also occurred in
the rear conservatory. The Engineer’s Report supplied in support of the application
may be referred to for information on specific areas of damage. The degree of
damage is categorised between 2 (up to 5mm) as listed in the Building Research
Establishment; Digest 251. The evidence in this case refers to the garage with
regard to damage and BH1 adjacent to the conservatory for soil based analysis.

6.3

Officers made a site visit on 8th October 2021 to review areas of damage both
internally and externally. Damage was observed under the kitchen window, around
the ceiling and hairline cracks in the hallway. Floor distortion was noted upon
inspection. The subject trees are confirmed to be within the zone of influence of the
dwelling. The nearest tree is approximately 10m from the insured dwelling. Tree
survey data has been submitted as part of the application supporting documents
and reference tree dimensions. The trees appear to be of normal vitality with no
recent management evident, with the exception of the ash tree (T2). The oak tree
is confirmed to be older than the impacted dwelling.

6.4

The following supporting documents have been appended to the application:







Arboricultural Report (27.02.20)
Subsidence Engineer’s Report (12.05.21)
Geotechnical Report (30.12.19)
Soil Analysis (23.03.20)
Level Monitoring (09.03.21)
Root Identification (17.12.19)

6.5

The subject trees are confirmed to be within the zone of influence. The zone of
influence is calculated to be 18.75m for the most significant tree (T4). Tree survey
data has been submitted as part of the application supporting documents and
reference tree dimensions. No defects have been noted by the tree surveyor.

6.6

Three trail pits (BH1-BH3) were excavated as part of the investigation. This revealed
foundations to depths at 350mm in BH1 adjacent to the conservatory. Data for the
remaining boreholes are yet to be received and are reported to have been to difficult
to obtain. Root identification in the BH1 reveals oak roots are beneath the
foundations of the conservatory.

Page 69

Figure 3 - Site Plan

6.7

Level monitoring of only 3 months have been supplied in the investigation.

6.8

Soil analysis has proven that the plasticity index is high, indicating an increased
potential for volume change. The highest reading recorded indicates a plasticity
index of 50%.

6.9

The agent’s Engineer has recommended the trees be felled to remove the influence
on the local soil conditions. The Arboricultural Consultant has agreed that tree felling
is required.

6.10 A drainage survey concludes that no defects exist. This has not been submitted as
a supporting document. Drainpipes are not reported to be present adjacent to the
area of concern.
6.11 The Engineers report indicates no heave risk, should tree removal take place.
6.12 The cost of repairs are estimated by the agent to be £5000 with tree removal and
£40,000 should repairs have to take into account retained tree influence.

Page 70

7

CONCLUSION

7.1

The foundations are not considered deep enough to withstand the influence of the
subject tree within the zone of influence. The required foundation depth has been
calculated to be in excess of 2m. The oak tree would have been present at the time
of construction in 1945 and should have been a consideration for foundation depth.

7.2

Level monitoring data is a required assessment document to demonstrate the
probability of the implicated trees being a causal factor. Level monitoring allows a
demonstration of building movement over a sufficient period (circa 12 months). This
is insufficient, as noted in the application guidance note.

7.3

Past underpinning has only been partially carried out. Differential settlement may
be occurring due to partial underpinning. The conservatory and garage are clearly
of shallow foundations.

7.4

Drainage defects have been eliminated from the investigation as a causal factor.

7.5

Heave has been addressed as a tolerable consequence of tree removal.

7.6

The investigation has focused on the damage associated with the garage
conversion. The soil information is associated with the borehole situated furthest
from the point of impact. The oak tree influence to the area of concern is therefore
questionable. A number of trees have been recommended for felling around the
dwelling. The ash tree is displaying signs of natural decline and has been reduced
before. It is therefore considered pragmatic to fell the tree for this reason and as a
step to address potential influence on the southern aspect of the dwelling.

7.7

The Engineers Report has stated that oak tree (T4) is outside the zone of influence
and does not require removal. It would therefore appear to be a precautionary step
to propose its loss.

7.8

A monetary value has been applied to the oak tree adopting the CAVAT (Capital
Asset Value for Amenity Trees) system. CAVAT provides a method for managing
trees as public assets rather than liabilities. It is designed not only to be a strategic
tool and aid to decision-making in relation to the tree stock as a whole, but also to
be applicable to individual cases, where the value of a single tree needs to be
expressed in monetary terms. CAVAT is recognised in the English court system,
with various case examples available.

7.9

The total value for the subject Oak tree is £30,004. The other protected trees
implicated in this case are calculated to be £22,450 and £6917. The combined value
is therefore totalling £59,371.

7.10 Since key information is yet to be received, Members are recommended to refuse
the application for the reasons set out. Alternative repairs have not been explored
or demonstrated. Potential faults in the building’s design are not yet proven to be a
potential cause.

Page 71

8

Financial Implications

8.1

Members are informed that no budget has been allocated to the defence of a
compensation claim, should the application be refused. A claim may include and is
not restricted to any further damage from the date of the decision, costs incurred in
respect further repairs, costs incurred in further monitoring and legal costs.
Members are also reminded of the officer costs involved in defending against a
compensation claim.

8.2

Attention is drawn to section 202E of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. This
allows the applicant to make a compensation claim in respect of a refused decision.

8.3

The Council must be prepared to defend against a compensation claim should the
application be refused. Based on the latest case example where a subsidence case
was refused and the Council had to defend a compensation claim, the costs of
repair in view of tree retention and legal costs were considerations. Where costs of
repair were estimated at £76000, the total costs of defending the case were circa
£90000. Members should therefore anticipate at least a 25% increase in costs. This
may relate to and is not limited to legal, investigation, expert costs and actual
repairs.

8.4

The Council are currently on notice for 6 subsidence cases where decision have
been refused. No further action has been taken at this stage, but Members must be
aware of the potential implications involved in a legal challenge.

RECOMMENDATION:
CONSENT IN PART FOR
T2 Ash - Remove.
CONDITIONS
1.

TL14 Tree Consent – Commencement
The tree works hereby granted consent shall be carried out within 2 years of the
date of this decision.
Reason: In order to comply with Policy 73 of the Bromley Local Plan and in the
interest of good arboricultural practice and the visual amenities of the area.

2.

A replacement Sweet Gum (Liquidamber styraciflua) standard size, rootballed or
container grown, shall be planted within 1m of the tree felled. Planting will take
place within 12 months of the removal of the tree(s). Any replacement tree
which dies, is removed or becomes seriously damaged or diseased within 5
years of the date of this consent shall be replaced in the next planting season
with another of similar size and species to that originally planted.
Reason: In order to comply with Policies 37, 73 and 74 of the Bromley Local Plan
and in the interest of the visual amenities of the area.

Page 72

REFUSAL FOR
T3 Norway Maple - Remove.
T4 Oak - Remove.
SUBJECT TO TPO 1387 (2.7.1997)
Reason:
1. The application has failed to acknowledge the adequacy of the dwelling's
foundations and the construction design. The proposals would negate the
objectives of the TPO and therefore conflict with Policies 73, 74 of The
Bromley Local Plan (adopted January 2019), Policy 7.21 of The London Plan
(adopted March 2016) and The London Borough of Bromley Tree
Management Strategy (2016-2020).
2. Insufficient level monitoring has not been supplied. The proposals would
negate the objectives of the TPO and therefore conflict with Policies 73, 74
of The Bromley Local Plan (adopted January 2019), Policy 7.21 of The
London Plan (adopted March 2016) and The London Borough of Bromley
Tree Management Strategy (2016-2020).
3. The implicated trees are yet to be confirmed as a causal factor for
subsidence damaged evidenced at boreholes BH1 and BH2. The proposals
would negate the objectives of the TPO and therefore conflict with Policies
73, 74 of The Bromley Local Plan (adopted January 2019), Policy 7.21 of The
London Plan (adopted March 2016) and The London Borough of Bromley
Tree Management Strategy (2016-2020).
INFORMATIVE
1.

You are advised that formal consent is not required for the removal of
deadwood, dangerous branches and ivy from protected trees.

Page 73

This page is left intentionally blank

(21/03208/TPO) - 59 Downs Hill,
Beckenham, BR3 5ET

Planning
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022.
Ordnance Survey 100017661.
14 January 2022

1:500

Page 75

This page is left intentionally blank

Agenda Item 7
Committee
Date

3rd February 2022

Address

Oakhill House, 39 The Knoll, Beckenham, BR3 5JH

Application
Number
Ward

21/05316/TPO

Officer Chris Ryder

Copers Cope

Proposal
T1 Oak tree - Section fell as close to ground level as possible and
replace.
Applicant
Mr Tom Hegan
Oakhill House
39 The Knoll
Beckenham
BR3 5JH
Reason for referral to
committee

Agent
Trees UK
Longfield Cottage
Nash Lane
Keston
BR2 6AP
Councillor call in
Returning Committee item
(PSC1)

RECOMMENDATION

Consent

KEY DESIGNATIONS
Tree Preservation Order (TPO) 2736
Chancery Lane Conservation Area

Representation
summary

Total number of responses
Number in support
Number of objections

0
0
0

Page 77

SUMMARY OF KEY REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION


Members must decide whether to consent or refuse the proposed tree removal,
based on the evidence submitted and the officer’s assessment.

PROPOSAL
1. This application has been made in respect of an oak tree (T1) situated in the rear
garden. The application has been made following the confirmation of Tree
Preservation Order (TPO) 2736 at Plans-Sub-Committee 1 on 25th November
2021. The felling of the tree is proposed due to the proximity to the dwelling and
general poor form/condition.

Figure 1 – Oak (T1)

LOCATION
2.

The site address is comprised of a semi-detached, locally listed dwelling, located
on the east side of the road. The property is located within the local conservation
area and borders Bromley Road along the southern boundary. The boundary is
lined with conifer hedging.

Page 78

3

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

3.1

Application 21/03526/FULL6 resulted in refused permission for ‘Proposed 1st
floor extension over existing side extension with balcony’.

3.2

Conservation area notice 21/04464/TREE proposed the felling of the subject oak
tree. The TPO was made following the officer’s evaluation.

3.3

Conservation area notice 19/03450/TREE resulted in no objections to:
1 x large Ash - Crown reduce upper canopy by approx. 2m and reduce side
radial laterals by approx. 1m. Remove major dead wood, to shape accordingly.
1 x Oak tree - Crown reduce upper canopy by approx. 2m and reduce side radial
laterals by approx. 1m. Remove major dead wood, to shape accordingly.
1 x small Ash tree leaning over neighbouring garden - Section fell to as close to
ground level as possible.
2 x large Lime trees with cavities at base overhanging public footpath (both in
dangerous condition) - Section fell to as close to ground level as possible.
1 x dead Sycamore stump - Section fell to as close to ground level as possible.
Crown lift remaining Lime trees to approx. 3-4m with emphasis over the public
footpath. Remove major dead wood overhanging footpath and shape
accordingly.
A selection of Leylandii (dead, dying and previously badly pruned) - Section fell
to as close to ground level as possible.
A selection of the remaining Leylandii (adjacent to the Lime trees) - Crown
reduce by approx. 30%, to remove selection of branches touching the branches
of the lime trees.
1 x large Poplar tree in front garden overhanging public footpath - Repollard.

3.4

TPO 2736 was made on 5 th August 2021 and later confirmed at Committee on
25th November 2021.

4

CONSULTATION SUMMARY

4.1

A site notice was sent to the applicant to be displayed in public view. No
representations were received.

4.2

The report associated with the TPO confirmation should be referred to for
summarised representations made in support and objection to the TPO. This may
be viewed under the Calendar of Meetings section of the Council website.

5
5.1

POLICIES AND GUIDANCE
National Policy Framework 2019
15. Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

5.2

The London Plan
G1 Green Infrastructure and Natural Environment
G7 Trees and Woodlands

5.3

Bromley Local Plan 2019
42 Conservation Areas
73 Development and Trees

Page 79

74 Conservation and Management of Trees and Woodlands
5.4

The London Borough of Bromley Tree Management Strategy 2016-2020
Section 18

5.5

National Planning Guidance - Tree Preservation Orders and trees in
conservation areas (Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government)
Paragraph 020 – 057

6

CONSIDERATIONS

6.1

The TPO was made on 5 th August 2021 in accordance with The Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 sections 198 – 202G.

6.2

Further to a visual assessment adopting the TEMPO (Tree Evaluation Method for
Preservation Orders) scoring system, a new TPO was considered justified. In
summary, the combined scores for tree condition, public visibility, retention span,
any special factors and threat level were sufficient enough to defend the making of
the TPO. The presence of the oak tree in the conservation area was an important
consideration of the evaluation.

6.3

The Order would not prevent future works from being carried out, but it requires that
the Council’s consent be gained prior to tree removal and prior to carrying out most
forms of tree pruning. In assessing applications to remove trees or carry out pruning,
the Council takes into account the reasons for the application, set alongside the
effect of the proposed work on the health and amenity value of the tree.

6.4

A site visit took place on Friday 12 th to follow up on the earlier inspection. The site
visit was considered necessary in response to the objections received. Officer
observations concur with the findings of the arboricultural consultant (Marcus
Foster). A closer assessment of the tree has impacted the evaluation made from
the public domain. The tree has been managed poorly in the past and is situated
close to the listed dwelling. The dwelling is notable older than the tree and is
therefore a key consideration as part of the conservation area objectives.

6.5

The overall condition of the tree, proximity to the dwelling, poor form and future
management requirements have resulted in a recommendation to allow the TPO to
lapse. The land owner has proposed a list of replacement trees. Whilst this cannot
be forced as part of this decision, members may wish to allow the confirmation to
ensure a replacement tree can be followed up as part of a planning condition. At
this stage, the TPO is no longer sufficiently justified, and members are reminded of
the use of a TPO for necessary circumstances in view of the resources available.

6.6

Members are recommended to consent to the felling of the tree, subject to condition
replacement planting as set out in the recommended decision.

7
7.1

CONCLUSION
In this instance, the tree is not considered of sufficient amenity value to continue to
preserve. It would be unreasonable for the Council to oppose the felling of the tree
based on the defects of the tree and issues raised.

Page 80

7.2

Replacement planting is considered a satisfactory compromise. A list of
recommended replacement planting options was submitted as part of the TPO
objection:
PROPOSED REPLACEMENT 01
Location: Rear of property
Proposed species: To be confirmed from species list below
Corylus colurna (Turkish hazel)
Betula nigra (River birch)
Gleditsia triacanthos ‘Inerims’ (Honey locust)
Liquidambar styraciflua ‘Worplesdon’ (American sweet gum
‘Worplesdon’)
Ulmus ‘New Horizon’ (Elm ‘New Horizon’)
PROPOSED REPLACEMENT 02
Location: Front / Side of property
Proposed species: To be confirmed from species list below
Cercis canadensis ‘Forest Pansy’ (Forest Pansy)
Magnolia ‘Yellowbird’ (Magnolia)
Amelanchier arborea ‘Robin Hill’ (Snowy mespil)

7.3

One tree species from the suggested list is more appropriate than the others in
replacing the subject tree and providing future amenity. Disease resistant elm are
available and may provide similar aesthetical benefit, whilst not threatening to
outgrow the context of the garden space.

7.4

Members are recommended to consent to the application and agree the
replacement planting under condition.

RECOMMENDATION: CONSENT
T1 Oak tree - Section fell as close to ground level as possible and replace.
CONDITIONS
1.

TL14 Tree Consent – Commencement
The tree works hereby granted consent shall be carried out within 2 years of the
date of this decision.
Reason: In order to comply with Policy 73 of the Bromley Local Plan and in the
interest of good arboricultural practice and the visual amenities of the area.

2.

A replacement Elm tree (Ulmus Spp.) of standard size, rootballed or container
grown, shall be planted in the rear garden. Planting will take place within 12
months of the removal of the tree(s). Any replacement tree which dies, is
removed or becomes seriously damaged or diseased within 5 years of the date
of this consent shall be replaced in the next planting season with another of
similar size and species to that originally planted.
Reason: In order to comply with Policies 37, 73 and 74 of the Bromley Local Plan
and in the interest of the visual amenities of the area.

Page 81

INFORMATIVES
1.

You are advised that formal consent is not required for the removal of
deadwood, dangerous branches and ivy from protected trees.

Page 82

(21/05316/TPO) - Oakhill House, 39
The Knoll, Beckenham, BR3 5JH

Planning
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022.
Ordnance Survey 100017661.
10 January 2022

1:1250

Page 83

This page is left intentionally blank

Agenda Item 8
Committee
Date

PSC1 – 03/02/22

Address

Land adjacent to 27 Holbrook Lane, Chislehurst

TPO No.
Ward
Proposal

Officer Paul Smith

2727
Chislehurst

Confirmation of Tree Preservation Order (TPO) 2727
Reason for referral to
committee

Councillor call in
Objection received

RECOMMENDATION

No

Confirmation without modification

KEY DESIGNATIONS
Tree Preservation Order (TPO) 2727

Representation
summary

Objection from landowners.

Total number of responses
Number in support
Number of objections

1

SUMMARY OF REPORT




2
2.1

2
0
2

To consider 2 objections received against the making of Tree Preservation Order (TPO)
2727.
The trees make an important contribution to the amenity of the surrounding local area.
Members must determine whether to confirm the TPO or allow it to lapse.

LOCATION
The site is located on Holbrook Lane, is bordered by residential properties on either side and
is within a Conservation Area.

Page 85

2.2

Tree Preservation Order (TPO) 2727 was made on 11th October 2021 to secure protection of
five individual trees and two groups of trees.

Figure 1 – Land adjacent to 27 Holbrook Lane

3

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

19/05161/FULL1 Land adjacent to 27 Holbrook Lane - Erection of two storey 5 bedroom dwelling
with accommodation in roof space and double garage
Application refused. Appeal Dismissed
21/03439/FULL1 Land adjacent to 27 Holbrook Lane - Erection of a two storey 5 bedroom
dwelling with accommodation in the roof space and double garage
Pending consideration
21/02701/TREE 27 Holbrook Lane - T23 Oak tree - Trim back branches that overhang property by
6-8m. T26 Oak tree - Trim back minor branches and tidy up generally the overhang by 2-3m.
TPO authorised
4
4.1

CONSULTATION SUMMARY
The land owner/occupier was served the TPO by recorded delivery. Immediate neighbours
were notified in writing of the TPO service.

Page 86

4.2

The objections are summarised and quoted below (a-g), responses to which are given under
7 below.
a) TPO 2727 “was initiated by a non local resident who lives in Yester Road and therefore his
views should be discounted.”
b) All the trees are located within the Conservation Area so are afforded a degree of
protection.
c) The contribution to public amenity of the subject trees is limited since they are located off a
private road.
d) T5 has been categorised as Cat C, is triple stemmed, has lost the fourth stem, has decay at
the base and has only “fair structural condition.”
e) G1 has been the subject of a potential subsidence claim from the neighbouring property, 33
Holbrook Lane. A report states that one of the Sweet Chestnut trees may cause subsidence
in the future and, therefore, “cannot be included in any TPO”.
f) The trees comprising G1 have been categorised within a report by an arboriculturalist as
Cat C, “in fair condition” with “limited lifespan”, and one as Cat U, with “considerable
dieback” and in “poor condition”.
g) The trees that comprise G2 are “not healthy specimens and are dying so should not be
placed under any TPO as remedial works will be needed in the near future to avoid safety
issues.” Of the trees comprising G2, one has been categorised by the same report as
mentioned above as Cat U and one as Cat C, with all trees being “close to each other” and
so having a “limited life span.”

5
5.1

POLICIES AND GUIDANCE
National Policy Framework 2019
15. Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

5.2

The London Plan
7.21 Trees and Woodlands

5.3

Draft London Plan
G1 Green Infrastructure and Natural Environment
G7 Trees and Woodlands

5.4

Bromley Local Plan 2019
42 Conservation Areas
73 Development and Trees
74 Conservation and Management of Trees and Woodlands

5.5

The London Borough of Bromley Tree Management Strategy 2016-2020
Section 18

5.6

National Planning Guidance - Tree Preservation Orders and trees in conservation areas
(Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government)
Paragraph 020 - 057

Page 87

6

COMMENTARY

6.1

The TPO was made on 11th October 2021 in accordance with The Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 sections 198 – 202G.

6.2

Further to a visual assessment adopting the TEMPO (Tree Evaluation Method for Preservation
Orders) scoring system, a new TPO was considered justified as the tree(s) merited
preservation. In summary, the tree(s) benefit from a suitable retention span and prominence
in the street scene.

6.3

The Order does not prevent future works from being carried out, but it requires that the
Council’s consent be gained prior to removing the tree and prior to carrying out most forms of
tree pruning. In assessing applications to remove trees or carry out pruning, the Council takes
into account the reasons for the application, set alongside the effect of the proposed work on
the health and amenity value of the trees.

6.4

The TPO is valid for 6 months from the date the order was made. If the TPO is not confirmed
within this period, the TPO will cease to exist. Considering the perceived risk to the trees as a
result of the planning application including their removal, continued preservation is required.

7

RESPONSE TO OBJECTION
a) If a resident from a different road had requested the Council give consideration to the
creation of a TPO in Holbrook Lane, the assessment made by the Officers would be the
same as if the request had come from a resident in Holbrook Lane. Furthermore, any
decision to make or not make a TPO as a result would be equally valid. In this case, the
TPO was actually a response to a s211 notification of intent to carry out works to trees in
the Conservation Area that involved harsh pruning of trees located on Land adjacent to 27
Holbrook Lane (21/02701/TREE) and the applications to build upon the latter (See 3
Relevant Planning History above.)
b) The implication of this point of objection is that the TPO is not required since the trees are
already subject to protection. However, the TPO was made in response to known threats;
i.e. a s211 notification of intent to undertaken harsh pruning of branches overhanging no.27
and proposals for development of the land that would involve tree felling. Had the TPO not
been made the excessive pruning proposed under 21/02701/TREE could have been
lawfully undertaken. Furthermore, notification of intent to carry out felling of trees on Land
adjacent to no. 27 is anticipated due to the intention to develop the plot.
c) Holbrook lane is the only link between parts of the LBB street network, i.e. between Barnard
Close, Cardinal Close, Poyntell Crescent and Bull Land/Shepherds Green. To the south of
the subject plot of land there are approximately 68 dwellings in the road, two Closes and
Crescent. Furthermore, the south end of Holbrook Lane links to footpaths on St Pauls Cray
Common, allowing a pedestrian link from the common to Bull Lane/Shepherds Green. The
trees on the Land adjacent to no. 27 are visible from the carriageway and surrounding
dwellings. Accordingly, the degree of public visibility as assessed by Officers indicated that
a TPO was merited.
d) The categorisation referred to is based on the British Standard (BS 5837:2012 Trees in
relation to design, demolition and construction – Recommendations.) This system of
categorisation is designed to assess whether individual trees should pose a constraint to
development. It is not designed to measure TPO worthiness. Furthermore, it is not the most
appropriate measure of the collective value of a groups/area of trees since it encourages
each tree to be assessed individually to highlight variation in attributes. Therefore, its
inclusion in any discussion here may be useful up to a point but should certainly not be
considered determinative of TPO worthiness. T5 is an aged (as evidenced by its 1m+ stem

Page 88

diameter) Sweet Chestnut in perfectly good health. Such aged trees greatly contribute to
the character of an area in a way that any newly planted replacement or smaller/shorterlived species cannot match. Accordingly, Officers’ assessment indicated that a TPO was
merited.
e) The report referred to under this point of objection states that at the time it was written the
trees were not the cause of subsidence damage. Therefore, this presents no restriction to
their protection by TPO.
f) See point d) above regarding the relevance of this form of categorisation. This point of
objection seeks to assess the TPO worthiness of the individual trees within a group.
However, the group as a whole is what has been considered worthy of protection. This is
one reason why BS5837 categories for individual trees are not appropriate as a measure of
TPO worthiness. One could pick apart a whole woodland and find each component tree
was a poor specimen not worthy of protection by itself, yet the collective can clearly have
great value. The assessment carried out by Officers produced a score indicating a TPO
was merited for G1.
g) See f.) The assessment carried out by Officers produced a score indicating a TPO was
merited for G2.
8

CONCLUSION

8.1

The TPO will cease to be valid upon expiry of 6 months from the date of service.

8.2

A level of management may be considered reasonable, should a justified application be
submitted. Damaging works will be opposed.

8.3

Members are advised to confirm the TPO as recommended.

RECOMMENDATION: Confirm TPO without modification.

Page 89

This page is left intentionally blank

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021. Ordnance Survey 100017661.

TOWN PLANNING
Tim Horsman
Assistant Director (Planning)
Planning Division
London Borough of Bromley
Stockwell Close, Bromley BR1 3UH

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
CONCERNING
Land Adjacent To 27 Holbrook Lane, Chislehurst

Tel: 020 8464 3333

Scale: 1:500

14/07/2021

T.P.O. No. 2727

Page 91

This page is left intentionally blank

Agenda Item 9

Committee
Date

PSC1 3/2/22

Address

TPO No.
Ward
Proposal

17 Avalon Close Orpington Kent BR6 9BS

Officer Paul Smith

2734
Orpington

Confirmation of Tree Preservation Order (TPO) 2734

Reason for referral to
committee

Councillor call in
Objection received

RECOMMENDATION

No

Confirmation without modification

KEY DESIGNATIONS
Tree Preservation Order (TPO) 2734

Representation
summary

Objection from neighbours.

Total number of responses
Number in support
Number of objections

1
1

Page 93

1

SUMMARY OF REPORT




2
2.1

The trees make an important contribution to the amenity of the surrounding
local area.
An objection has been received against the making of the Tree Preservation
Order (TPO.)
Members must determine whether to confirm the TPO or allow it to lapse.

LOCATION
The trees are located in the rear garden of a residential property.

Figure 1 – Location of TPO

Page 94

Figure 2 – View from Avalon Close

3

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
n/a

4

CONSULTATION SUMMARY

4.1

The land owner/occupiers were served the TPO by recorded delivery. Immediate
neighbours were notified in writing of the TPO service.

4.2

One representation was received from a neighbouring resident and can be
summarised as follows:

a) Trees require “careful and regular management” which “does not seem to be the
plan” in this case.
b) If the Ash tree is not pruned it will eventually grow sufficiently tall to reach the
neighbour’s home in the event of its failure.
c) Branches overhang the neighbour’s property and a branch has previously broken
and fallen into the neighbour’s garden.
d) Both trees are intimidating in high winds.
5

POLICIES AND GUIDANCE

Page 95

5.1

National Policy Framework 2019
15. Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

5.2

The London Plan
7.21 Trees and Woodlands

5.3

Draft London Plan
G1 Green Infrastructure and Natural Environment
G7 Trees and Woodlands

5.4

Bromley Local Plan 2019
42 Conservation Areas
73 Development and Trees
74 Conservation and Management of Trees and Woodlands

5.5

The London Borough of Bromley Tree Management Strategy 2016-2020
Section 18

5.6

National Planning Guidance - Tree Preservation Orders and trees in
conservation areas (Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government)
Paragraph 020 - 057

6

COMMENTARY

6.1

The TPO was made on 14th October 2021 in accordance with The Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 sections 198 – 202G.

6.2

Further to a visual assessment adopting the TEMPO (Tree Evaluation Method
for Preservation Orders) scoring system, a new TPO was considered justified. In
summary, the combined scores for tree condition, public visibility, retention span,
any special factors and threat level were sufficiently high to indicate protection
was warranted.

6.3

The Order does not prevent future works from being carried out, but it requires
that the Council’s consent be gained prior to tree removal and prior to carrying
out most forms of tree pruning. In assessing applications to remove trees or carry
out pruning, the Council takes into account the reasons for the application, set
alongside the effect of the proposed work on the health and amenity value of the
tree.

Page 96

6.4
7
7.1

8

The TPO is valid for 6 months from the date the order was made. If the TPO is
not confirmed within this period, the TPO will cease to exist.
RESPONSE TO OBJECTION
a) The trees are the responsibility of the tree owner. Whether or not the owner
has a plan for the trees’ management does not affect the their TPO worthiness.
b) There is currently no indication that the Ash presents an elevated risk of
failure. Officers considered its structural condition during the assessment of TPO
worthiness.
c) The neighbour whose land is overhung by the branches has, to date, been
free to the prune the overhanging branches and is now free to submit an
application for permission to prune them.
d) There is currently no indication that either tree presents an elevated risk of
failure. Officers considered their structural condition during the assessment of
TPO worthiness.
CONCLUSION

8.1

The TPO will cease to be valid upon expiry of 6 months from the date of service.

8.2

A level of management may be considered reasonable, should a justified
application be submitted. Damaging works will be opposed.

8.3

Members are advised to confirm the TPO as recommended.

RECOMMENDATION: Confirm TPO without modification.

Page 97

This page is left intentionally blank

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021. Ordnance Survey 100017661.

TOWN PLANNING
Tim Horsman
Assistant Director (Planning)
Planning Division
London Borough of Bromley
Stockwell Close, Bromley BR1 3UH

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
CONCERNING
17 Avalon Close, Orpington Kent BR6 9BS

Tel: 020 8464 3333

Scale: 1:500

03/08/2021

T.P.O. No. 2734

Page 99

This page is left intentionally blank

Agenda Item 10
Committee
Date

PSC1 – 3/2/22

Address

28 Holbrook Lane Chislehurst BR7 6PF

TPO No.
Ward
Proposal

Officer Paul Smith

2745
Chislehurst

Confirmation of Tree Preservation Order (TPO) 2745
Reason for referral to
committee

Councillor call in
Objection received

RECOMMENDATION

No

Confirmation without modification

KEY DESIGNATIONS
Tree Preservation Order (TPO) 2745

Representation
summary

Objection from owner/occupier.

Total number of responses
Number in support
Number of objections

1

SUMMARY OF REPORT




2
2.1

1
0
1

To consider 1 objection received against the making of the Tree Preservation Order
(TPO.)
The tree makes an important contribution to the amenity of the surrounding local area.
Members must determine whether to confirm the TPO or allow it to lapse.

LOCATION
The site is located on Holbrook Lane, Chislehurst.

Page 101

2.2

Tree Preservation Order (TPO) 2745 was made on 18th October 2021 to secure protection of
one Oak tree at 28 Holbrook Lane.

Figure 1 – 28 Holbrook Lane

Figure 2 - View of T1.

3

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

21/04283/TREE
Withdrawn

28 Holbrook Lane

Large Oak tree in front garden - Remove.

Page 102

28 Holbrook Lane
T1 Oak at front of property - Fell including grinding of
stump. T2 Row of x6 Leylandii - Remove to ground level.
TPO Authorised
21/04345/TREE

4

CONSULTATION SUMMARY

4.1

The land owner/occupier was served the TPO by recorded delivery. Immediate neighbours
were notified in writing of the TPO service.

4.2

One objection was received from the land owner/occupier and is summarised below.
a) The intent to fell the tree was the result of an inspection by a tree surgeon who highlighted
that there is significant amount of decay in the main stem.

5
5.1

POLICIES AND GUIDANCE
National Policy Framework 2019
15. Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

5.2

The London Plan
7.21 Trees and Woodlands

5.3

Draft London Plan
G1 Green Infrastructure and Natural Environment
G7 Trees and Woodlands

5.4

Bromley Local Plan 2019
42 Conservation Areas
73 Development and Trees
74 Conservation and Management of Trees and Woodlands

5.5

The London Borough of Bromley Tree Management Strategy 2016-2020
Section 18

5.6

National Planning Guidance - Tree Preservation Orders and trees in conservation areas
(Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government)
Paragraph 020 - 057

6

COMMENTARY

6.1

The TPO was made on 18th October 2021 in accordance with The Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 sections 198 – 202G.

6.2

Further to a visual assessment adopting the TEMPO (Tree Evaluation Method for Preservation
Orders) scoring system, a new TPO was considered justified as the tree(s) merited
preservation. In summary, the tree benefits from a suitable retention span and prominence in
the street scene.

Page 103

6.3

The Order does not prevent future works from being carried out, but it requires that the
Council’s consent be gained prior to removing the tree and prior to carrying out most forms of
tree pruning. In assessing applications to remove trees or carry out pruning, the Council takes
into account the reasons for the application, set alongside the effect of the proposed work on
the health and amenity value of the trees.

6.4

The TPO is valid for 6 months from the date the order was made. If the TPO is not confirmed
within this period, the TPO will cease to exist. Considering the perceived risk to the trees as a
result of the planning application including their removal, continued preservation is required.

7

RESPONSE TO OBJECTION
a) No evidence has been submitted to support the assertion of the presence of decay, i.e. a
risk assessment, to say nothing of any evaluation that would indicate that felling is the only
option remaining to reduce any current risk to an acceptable level. If a structural defect
exists, pruning may be a sufficient response. In summary, no evidence has been submitted
to suggest the tree is not TPO worthy.

8

CONCLUSION

8.1

The TPO will cease to be valid upon expiry of 6 months from the date of service.

8.2

A level of management may be considered reasonable, should a justified application be
submitted. Damaging works will be opposed.

8.3

Members are advised to confirm the TPO as recommended.

RECOMMENDATION: Confirm TPO without modification.

Page 104

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021. Ordnance Survey 100017661.

TOWN PLANNING
Tim Horsman
Assistant Director (Planning)
Planning Division
London Borough of Bromley
Stockwell Close, Bromley BR1 3UH

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
CONCERNING
28 Holbrook Lane, Chislehurst, BR7 6PF

Tel: 020 8464 3333

Scale: 1:200

11/10/2021

T.P.O. No. 2744

Page 105

This page is left intentionally blank

Agenda Item 11

Committee
Date
Address

TPO No.
Ward
Proposal

3rd February 2022

19 and 30 Broadoaks Way, Bromley, BR2 0UA
Officer Chris Ryder

2758
Shortlands

Confirmation of Tree Preservation Order (TPO) 2758

Reason for referral to
committee

Councillor call in
Objections received

RECOMMENDATION

No

Allow TPO to lapse

KEY DESIGNATIONS
Tree Preservation Order (TPO) 2758
The Broadoaks Estate Conservation Area

Representation
summary

Objection received from the tree owner of No.19 Broadoaks Way

Total number of responses
Number in support
Number of objections

1
0
1

Page 107

1

2
2.1

SUMMARY OF REPORT


The trees make an insignificant contribution to the conservation area.



Objections have been received against the making of the Tree Preservation
Order (TPO), on behalf of the land owner at 19 Broadoaks Way.



Members must determine whether to confirm the TPO or allow it to lapse.

LOCATION
The bay tree (T1) is located in the rear garden of No. 19 and the willow (T2) is
located in the rear garden of No. 30. The dwellings are both situated in the
conservation area, applying broad tree protection.

Figure 1 – Bay tree (T1)
3

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

3.1

Bay tree in rear garden - Crown reduce by 5m.
Ref. No: 19/00549/TREE | Status: Decision No objection

3.2

Proposed first floor side extension and conversion of existing garage to
habitable accommodation.
Ref. No: 21/02164/FULL6 | Status: Application Refused

Page 108

3.3

Single storey rear extension for conservatory
Ref. No: 02/04021/FULL1 | Status: Application Permitted

3.4

The TPO was made following the earlier call in of conservation area notice
21/04285/TREE to Plans Sub Committee 1 held on 25 th November 2021.

4

CONSULTATION SUMMARY

4.1

The land owners/occupiers were served the TPO by hand delivery. Immediate
neighbours were notified in writing of the TPO service.

4.2

1 objection was received and can be summarised as follows:
“I write to object to the Tree Preservation order (details above) being placed on the
Bay Tree in our garden for the following reasons:
The tree roots are not in the ground of the garden but in a raised bed 6 yards from
the back of our house. We feel the proximity of the tree to our house and our
daughters’ bedroom poses a danger to life and to the structure of the house in the
event of strong winds or bad weather. The roots are supported by wooden posts
which are rotting and need to be replaced. We are considering the different
replacement options but have very serious concerns that during the process of
replacing these, the tree which is of a very substantial size will not be supported and
poses a very real danger of causing damage to our house and therefore to the safety
of our children. Our Childs bedroom is directly in the path of the tree.
Due to the proximity of the tree to our house, a substantial amount of light to our
children’s rear bedroom, the dining room and the conservatory is blocked. This is
having an impact on our monthly energy bills and our increased efforts to live in an
eco-friendly way, due to the need to have the lights on in those rooms when we
would otherwise be reliant on natural light.
Due to the proximity of the tree to our house we are unable to open our children’s
bedroom window during the summer as there is an increased insect activity around
the tree. When the window is open, she is constantly bombarded with flying insects
in the bedroom and feels uncomfortable sleeping with the window open. This is
highly undesirable during summer when fresh airflow is vital for the house and our
childs’ wellbeing.
Due to the species of the tree, we are having to employ a tree surgeon every other
year to maintain the tree for us and our neighbours to quality of light. We were
unaware of such cost when moving into the property and is not sustainable in the
long term. We feel this is a cost which we, as a family would benefit from not having
to pay.
Due to the size of the tree and its position we are unable to grow anything near the
tree as it has a detrimental impact on all other plant life in the immediate area. This
is providing an unattractive view into our garden and not in keeping with the rest of
the well-maintained garden.
Since moving into the property, we have endeavoured to improve our garden, which
we feel both sets of neighbours have benefited from. This includes the pruning of

Page 109

previously neglected trees which had failed to have been maintained and had
become overgrown. We feel we are respectful of our environment and the nature of
the conservation area. We still have nine trees in our back garden, which we intend
to keep and maintain in accordance with the beauty of the area.
We would also be willing to plant a new tree, which is slower growing and easier to
maintain, further away from the house in replacement of the bay tree.”

5
5.1

POLICIES AND GUIDANCE
National Policy Framework 2019
15. Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

5.2

The London Plan
7.21 Trees and Woodlands

5.3

Draft London Plan
G1 Green Infrastructure and Natural Environment
G7 Trees and Woodlands

5.4

Bromley Local Plan 2019
42 Conservation Areas
73 Development and Trees
74 Conservation and Management of Trees and Woodlands

5.5

The London Borough of Bromley Tree Management Strategy 2016-2020
Section 18

5.6

National Planning Guidance - Tree Preservation Orders and trees in
conservation areas (Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government)
Paragraph 020 - 057

6

COMMENTARY

6.1

The TPO was made on 26th November 2021 in accordance with The Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 sections 198 – 202G.

6.2

Further to a visual assessment, the trees lack public visibility, retention span,
special factors to justify preservation.

6.3

The Order would not prevent future works from being carried out, but it requires
that the Council’s consent be gained prior to tree removal and prior to carrying
out most forms of tree pruning. In assessing applications to remove trees or carry
out pruning, the Council takes into account the reasons for the application, set

Page 110

alongside the effect of the proposed work on the health and amenity value of the
tree. In this instance, the TPO is considered an unnecessary constraint to both
properties.
6.4

Members are recommended to allow the TPO to lapse in this instance.

6.5

The TPO is valid for 6 months from the date the order was made. If the TPO is
not confirmed within this period, the TPO will cease to exist.

7
7.1
8

RESPONSE TO OBJECTIONS
The points made have been considered in forming this recommendation.
CONCLUSION

8.1

The TPO will cease to be valid upon expiry of 6 months from the date of service.

8.2

Should members wish to confirm the TPO, a level of management may be
considered reasonable, should a justified application be submitted.

8.3

Members are advised to allow the TPO to lapse as recommended, for the
reasons set out.

RECOMMENDATION: Allow TPO to lapse

Page 111

This page is left intentionally blank

(21/04240/TREE) - 19 Broadoaks
Way, Bromley, BR2 0UA

Planning
© Crown copyright and database rights 2021.
Ordnance Survey 100017661.
03 November 2021

1:1250

Page 113

This page is left intentionally blank

